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INFORMATION TO BE INCLUDED IN REPORT

1. Information Distributed to Security Holders

The registrant, KOMATSU LTD., distributed to its security
holders the following document, which is attached hereto
and constitutes a part hereof: Annual Report for the year
ended March 31, 2002. (this report contains the financial
statementswhicharepreparedinaccordancewith accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States.)

2. Information Required to Make Public

Pursuant to Article 24, Paragraph 1 of the Securities and
Exchange Law of Japan (Law No. 25 of 1948, as amended,
hereinafter the “Law’), the registrant filed with the
Director of the Kanto Local Finance Bureau of the Ministry
of Finance of Japan and eight stock exchanges in Japan
a Report on Securities for the 133rd Fiscal Period from
April 1, 2001 to March 31, 2002, prepared in the Japanese
language. Said Report on Securities was made public in
Japan by the Kanto Local Finance Bureau and by those

exchanges. Allsignificant informationcontainedtherein




and required to be included herein is contained in the
document identified in Item 1 above as attached hereto
and made a part hereof and the attachments to the Form
6-K filed on June 5 and July 5, 2002 respectively, or will
be reported in Form 20-F Annual Report under Section 13
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which
the registrant should file by the end of September, 2002.
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Cauticnary Statement

.= - This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements that reflect antents

management’s views and assurﬁp ons in the light of information ) Financial Hightights

currently at'/ar/abllgﬂ\iwth. ‘respect to 'ce(ta/n.futuce' iyenfs,, including ... - - To Our Shareholders

expected financial position, operating resufts and business, strate-

gies. These statements can-be’identified by the use of terms such as Interview with"Masahiro Sakane, President
will,” “befieves,” “should,” “profects,” "p/ans,‘" “expects” and similar Moving Onward with the Reform Based

terms ‘and expressions that-identify. future events or expectations.
" Actual results may differ materially from those projected, and the

events and results of such forward-looking assumptions cannot be

assured. Any forward-looking statements speak only as of the date

of this Annual Report, and Komatsu assumes no duty to update ‘

such statements. . Construction and Miring Equipment

Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from - '

those predicted by such forward-looking statements include, but are- .

not limited to, unanticipated changes in demand for the Company’s o

principal prqducts, ‘owing to changes in the economic conditioﬁs in . Protection 61‘ the Earth’s Environment

the Company’s principal markets; changes in exchange rates or the ) :

impact of increased competition; unanticipated costs or delays. - Greening the Environment with Plants..

encountered in achieving the Company’s objectives with respect to . ..~ Financial-Section

globalized probuct.sourcing and ngw information technology tools; T

uncertainties as to the resuits of the Company’s research and devel~- "5 |

opment efforts and its ability to access and protect certain intellec-"~%+ " Komatsu Group Investment Holdings

tual prob‘erty rights; the impact of regulatory changes and e

accounting principles and. practices; and the introduction, suc-

cess and timing of business initiatives and strategies.

_on the “Spirit of Manufacturers” Concept

Review of Operations

Electronics’

Directors and Officers




Financial Highlights

Komatsu Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Thousands of
U.S. doliars

Millions of yen (except per
(except per share amounts) share amounts)
2002 2001 2000 2002
INEL SIS ..t ¥1,035,891 ¥1,096,369 ¥1,055,654 $ 7,788,654
JAPAM e anre s 478,187 586,865 553,822 3,595,391
OVEISEAS 11iieiiiiiie i e ettt e et e e e et ees s be e et e e eese e e e tbes e e s sarenesesaraee s 557,704 509,504 501,832 4,193,263
Operating INCOME (IOSS) «.vvvcceiereiieesie et ere b e (13,221) 27,815 17,318 (99,406)
Income (loss) before income taxes, minority interests
and EQUILY IN BaMMINGS ..oiviii et ceee et a e et e (106,724) 20,064 19,395 (802,436)
NEt INCOME (0SS) ..uvviiieiei ettt e e e (80,621} 6,913 13,395 (606,173)
Net income (loss) per share—basiC ........cocvvveciiiiiiie e ¥ (8446) ¥ 7.24 ¥ 13.85 (63.5)¢
T0tAl ASSEIS 1tieiei i e e 1,340,282 1,403,195 1,375,280 10,077,308
Shareholders’ €QUILY ....ccov v e s 395,143 474,257 490,454 2,971,000
Shareholders’ equity per Share ........ocoeiviiiiencie e ¥ 41402 ¥ 49712 ¥ 507.26 311.3¢
Capital @XPenditures .........cooiveiiiciiii e e 74,468 79,310 57,728 559,910
Research and development eXpenses......ccccivvviiriee i cees e, 44,083 45,282 42,460 331,451
NUMbeEr Of EMPIOYEES ......viieiiiieeis et e 30,760 32,002 28,522 —
Sales by Operation
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2000 2002
Construction and mining eqUIPMENt .........coooiiiiiiiiiiiire e ¥ 731,340 ¥ 718,147 ¥ 747,647 $5,498,797
BIBCITONICS 1 e e 76,769 117,745 90,335 §77,210
L0 aT=T S USSR UPN 227,782 260,477 217,672 1,712,647
NEE SAIES ... e e ¥1,035,891 ¥1,096,369 ¥1,055,654 $7,788,654
Sales by Region
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2000 2002
I - o - o TR O SO OO PRSPPI ¥ 478,187 ¥ 586,865 ¥ 553,822 $3,595,391
FaN g =T ot T SRR SRR UUPRIN 262,341 241,091 242,609 1,972,489
U o] o1 T OO UUUTPPPURT 128,029 126,479 123,633 962,624
Asia (excluding Japan) and OCeania......ccc.covereviieviieaieenieen e 126,363 117,136 99,558 950,098
Middle East and AffiCa ........eeeiiieieeiiiee e 40,971 24,798 36,032 308,052
NEL SAIES .ttt e e e a e aae s ¥1,035,891 ¥1,096,369 ¥1,055,654 $7,788,654

The above sales are recognized by sales destination.
Operating income (loss) represents net sales less cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses.
The United States dollar amounts represent translations of Japanese yen amounts at the rate of $1=¥133.

See Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Business Results

Satoru Anzaki Masahiro Sakane
Chairman of the Board President

During fiscal 2002, ended March 31, 2002, the business environment for construction and min-
ing equipment became grave in Japan, with an over 20% decline in demand from the previous
year, as it was impacted by reduced construction investment. Overseas, while the Chinese mar-
ket continued to expand during the year, demand in the major markets of North America and
Europe declined. As a result, overall overseas demand was slack for the year under review.

With respect to electronics, the international semiconductor market registered a record drop
in 2001, resulting in a drastic fall in demand for silicon wafers and their raw material, poly-
crystalline silicon. Demand for thermoelectric modules for use in fiber optic communication net-
works took a sharp downturn during the year, partly in reaction to skyrocketing demand in the
previous year.

Komatsu Ltd. embarked on its Reform of Business Structure project, centering on capacity cost
reduction, substantial cutbacks in production costs and new growth in its mainstay construction
and mining equipment business, to transform its corporate structure into a new one capable of
expanding profits. As part of this reform, the Company consolidated some operations, restruc-
tured its organizations, improved operationai efficiency and cut back expenses. In Japan, the
Company implemented voluntary retirement and transferred employees to affiliated companies.

In its construction and mining equipment business, the Company aggressively made an initial
domestic launch of its GALEO-series equipment, which features [T and other cutting-edge tech-
nologies. The Company also worked to accelerate involvement in after-sales downstream mar-
kets such as those for rental equipment, used equipment, parts and services. Overseas, the
Company made concerted efforts to secure profits by carrying out programs that differed ac-
cording to regions and products.

In response to deteriorated profitability in its electronics business, the Company made a thor-
ough reassessment of the segment’s business structure and recorded impairment losses on the
fixed assets of two subsidiaries in the United States.

While Komatsu is determined to bring about positive results from these special measures, the
expenses associated with them were recorded as a one-time loss. Komatsu posted consolidated
net sales of ¥1,035.8 billion (US$7,789 million, at US$1=¥133) for fiscal 2002, down 5.5% from
the previous year. Regrettably, the Company registered a net loss of ¥80.6 billion (US$606 mil-
lion) for the year.

Working toward a V-Shaped Recovery To improve profits and accomplish a V-shaped recovery of business re-
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sults, we are going to focus efforts on the following four tasks:

1} To Accelerate the Implementation of Qur New Growth Strategy for the Construction and
Mining Equipment Business [n the Japanese market, we are going to place more efforts on
the after-sales downstream markets. To generate positive results in these markets, we need to
change conventional ways of doing business and develop new business models. Based on in-
novative machines, as represented by the GALEQO-series equipment, we will develop solutions-
centered businesses and reinforce our used equipment business.




In overseas markets, we are going to heighten our presence based on new products.

Overseas demand is on a growth track when viewed with a long-range perspective. We have
recently revised our organizations reiated to the marketing of construction and mining equip-
ment and assigned directors to four regions—the Americas, Europe, Southeast Asia and the
Pacific, and China. We are now better prepared to maximize cooperation among all regional op-
erations as well as our strength of globalization. Specifically, we are going to improve our posi-
tion and profitability in each region by expanding our business, centering on the GALEO-series
equipment, and enhancing the cost competitiveness of each production base.
2) To Reinforce Our Competitiveness by Reducing Capacity Costs in All Businesses As to
capacity cost reduction, we are ahead of our initial plan and intend to build on more results as
we move on. In the construction and mining equipment business, we are working on a sizable
reduction in production costs from an early phase of development in addition to the consolida-
tion of models.

We are also going to actively establish alliances to reduce costs and facilitate efficiency of
management resources. At present, we are in separate discussions with Volvo Construction
Equipment (Volvo CE) and Hitachi Construction Machinery Co., Ltd., concerning collaboration in
production and development or joint procurement of components for construction equipment,
while remaining as competitors in sales and services. As the first step with Volvo CE, we have
agreed to consign to it the production of cabs for our wheel loaders in Europe.

3) To Facilitate Self-Driven Reconstruction of the Electronics Business Our electronics
businesses will each work to reconstruct their operations. During the year, we worked to allevi-
ate the future risks of the silicon wafer and polycrystalline silicon businesses. While further ad-
vancing efforts for technological differentiation, these businesses will strive for the reinforcement
of their competitiveness through productivity enhancement and capacity cost reduction. Mean-
while, the thermoelectric module and excimer laser businesses will strive to expand business
based on their technological advantages under their respective alliances.

4) To Promote Reform Based on the “Spirit of Manufacturers” Concept For Komatsu,
a manufacturer, to enhance competitiveness, reform based on the "Spirit of Manufacturers”
concept is extremely important. By this concept, we mean that manufacturers must provide
products (hardware and software) that customers are happy to own, which will resuit in profits
for us. We believe this “spirit” is our power to rise to every challenge and to constantly produce
the best possible products through a unified team of all employees, from research and develop-
ment, procurement, production and sales through after-sales service. This power is the foundation
of Komatsu's competitive strength. By reinforcing our original system of manufacturing, we will
strive to develop products, services and systems with outstanding features that will surpass
those of our competitors, and our production bases worldwide will strive to achieve top-level
product competitiveness in their respective regions.

Komatsu has recently decided to transform Komatsu Forklift Co., Ltd., and Komatsu Zenoah
Co., both listed subsidiaries, into wholly owned subsidiaries through stock-for-stock exchanges
on October 1, 2002. To improve the profitability and corporate vaiue of the Komatsu Group, we
are determined to build a highly dynamic management structure based on more unified opera-
tions with these subsidiaries in the industrial-use machinery business, which includes construc-
tion and transportation-related equipment.

The cornerstone of Komatsu’s management lies in its commitment to Quality and Reliability in
order to maximize the corporate value of the Company. While this commitment remains un-
changed, the current top priority is to recover the profitability of each business and lift business
results. All Komatsu Group employees, including those of us in management, are determined to
work with speed on the above tasks.

On behalf of the members of the Board, we would like to extend our sincere appreciation to
our valued shareholders, customers, business partners and employees around the world for
their support.

June 26, 2002

A Asadre Sosm

Satoru Anzaki, Chairman of the Board Masahiro Sakane, President
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RteRiew Witih
Measenire k
Bresiclenia

The Japanese market for construction

| Last year was very tough for Komatsu in terms of business results. The . equipment has kept on contracting, but it

sluggish performance of the Company’s construction equipment business " is still a major market—with about 20%

in Japan was a major negative factor, particularly for profits. How are you of global demand—supported in part by
N i
going to respond to th’S situation exports of used equipment to other Asian

countries. So the Japanese market remains |mportant for us.

To generate profits in the Japanese market, we judged that we would need to change our
business orientation from the conventional emphasis on sales of new equipment to an entire life-
cycle approach to construction equipment, including rental equipment, used equipment, parts
and services. Based on this approach, two years ago, we initiated involvement in the down-
stream market, whose size is double that of new equipment sales. As we have clearly defined
the responsibility for the downstream business through the recent reorganization of our con-
struction equipment business, we are reinforcing and accelerating our involvement. To this end,
we need to change our conventional ways and develop new business models, and | believe that
the utilization of IT is indispensable for us to achieve these objectives. In addition to mounting
our original KOMTRAX information terminal on new equipment, we are promoting its installation
in Komatsu machines already owned by customers. With IT, we can obtain a variety of informa-
tion concerning their equipment, such as operating conditions, history of operations and loca-
tion. KOMTRAX will not only benefit equipment owners by improving machine management and
services, it will also create new business opportunities for us in such areas as rental equipment,
used equipment and contract-based services, thus improving our profitability.

Of course, the competitiveness of our machines is the indispensable base for our downstream
business expansion. We have been making aggressive launchings of GALEO-series equipment
since last summer. During fiscal 2002, we introduced 20 new and renewed models, centering on
mainstay hydraulic excavators, wheel loaders and bulldozers. We are continuing such market
introductions in the current fiscal year. Capitalizing on these new machines, we are determined
to increase our market share in Japan

Similarly, the slack performance of the electronics busmess, especrally the |
polycrystalline silicon business, had a large negative impact on the ;
Company’s business results in terms of loss. Doesn’t this business carry ’
too large a risk when you consider market changes and the speed of | ;

i

those changes? ;

in fiscal 2002, we impaired the fixed as-
sets of our silicon wafer and polycrys-
talline silicon businesses for losses and
recorded a large one-time loss. We have
thus removed substantial risks, and |

(- S _ ,_ I | believe the electronics business will no

Ionger be burdensome to Komatsu’s management. In this light, Komatsu is going to support a
scenario for their self-driven reconstruction.




==

EV 8/ Ral: Challenge of (C0=_EVE

Cost CompetiiiEgEss

As to the polycrystalline silicon business, a large surplus in supply-to-demand is an industry-
wide problem. Although this problem will be resolved in the future, Advanced Silicon Materials
LLC (ASiMI) reduced its production capacity on its own initiative, rather than waiting for the time
when supply and demand balance, by consolidating production of polycrystalline silicon for
semiconductors to the advanced Butte Plant in Montana. ASiMI is now better positioned to
focus on high-profit products for improved business results.

As to ASiMI's Moses Lake Plant in Washington, where it has discontinued operations, the
company has recently signed a letter of intent with Renewable Energy Corporation AS of Norway
to establish a joint-venture manufacturer to convert the plant into being able to produce poly-
crystalline silicon for solar applications. When this joint venture is established, we can expect
to meet healthy growth in demand for polycrystalline silicon. We are planning to start the joint
venture with 50-50 equity participation. We are contemplating that Renewable Energy will take
the leading role in the operation of the joint venture and that ASiMI will concentrate its efforts on
the production of polycrystalline silicon for semiconductors.

Conditions for the silicon wafer market were very poor last year. However, because the
Japanese operations of Komatsu Electronic Metals Co., Ltd., had worked very hard to enhance
competitiveness by improving the quality and productivity of silicon wafers and cutting back ca-
pacity costs, the company has strengthened its corporate structure and is now capable of sus-
taining break-even profitability even under sluggish market conditions and achieving a high level
of profits when the market recovers. Therefore, the company has one remaining major task to
work on, that is, making its joint venture in Taiwan profitable. This venture suffered from a dras-
tic fall in demand for silicon wafers at the time of its production start-up. As we see signs of
market recovery in 2002, we are expecting to see this venture generate profits on a single-
month basis in the second half of the year while forging collaboration with the Jocal partner.

Since last year, Komatsu has been powerfully fac:lltatmg its Reform of
Business Structure project, with special focus on the reduction of capac:ty ;
. costs. What have you accomplished in one year? What-are-you-going to .

j ?
emphasize from now on? o i will be absorbed by expanded sales,

While capacity cost reduction is generally
understood as a negative, | think of it as
exactly the opposite. Furthermore, while
some people believe that capacity costs

| clearly separate the areas where we work for growth and where we reduce costs. In the case of
Komatsu, our production costs are globally competitive; however, a majority of the advantages
are eroded by capacity costs today. To enhance our competitiveness, capacity cost reduction is
a must, in addition to the conventional reduction of production costs. When we compare our-
selves with other international players in our industry, we have larger capacity costs. This differ-
ence translates directly into a difference in profitability. In October last year, to shorten this gap,
| proclaimed, both internally and externally, our goal of a ¥30 billion reduction on a consolidated
basis by the end of March 2004. To accomplish this goal, you cannot turn away from the prob-
lems associated with Japanese-style employment. After discussing the issue with the labor
union, we implemented a voluntary retirement program and transferred Komatsu-seconded em-
ployees to subsidiaries. With regard to the transfer, we concluded it was indispensable to
heighten the feelings of unity and motivation among all employees at their respective companies.
We are also advancing the reduction of capacity costs ahead of our original plan, and we are
working to add on to the original goal for the year ending March 31, 2004.

LI s




Today, we have about 300 companies in the Komatsu Group. Of course, | have no doubt that
all of them had reasons for being established. Nevertheless, this number is far too many, and we
believe consolidation and integration are necessary. We are planning to reduce these companies
by one-third to about 200 companies for the time being by promoting the consolidation of busi-
nesses and integration of overlapping capabilities. In Japan, for example, we have already initiated
the promotion of wider regional coverage by some distributors and the integration of in-group
service companies. Overseas, we have also consolidated our North American subsidiaries.

r T - It is generally believed that Japanese
|
!
L

Since you became president, you have consistently advocated reform 1
based on the “Spirit of Manufacturers” concept. Please explain your
thoughts on this matter and why are you emphas:zmg lt now’P

manufacturing industries have lost their
cost competitiveness due to high wages.
: On the contrary, our Japanese plants are

more oompetmve than our overseas plants thanks to their efforts over the years, accumulated
technological expertise and solid cooperative relations with suppliers. While costs are influenced
by foreign exchange rates, of course it is possible for us in Japan to continue our manufacturing
while maintaining our competitiveness. By originating ideas and taking up the challenge of high-
er goals, | am certain that we will be able to keep growing. By all means, if a company like
Komatsu cannot survive, the Japanese economy will lose its foothold. This is why | have been
telling all employees to originate ideas and together promote the reform based on the “Spirit of
Manufacturers” with self-confidence. In fact, when the United States was placed in the midst of
recession in the 1980s, U.S. manufacturers were under the direct threat of Japanese cars and
construction equipment. However, except for certain manufacturing sectors, such as home elec-
trical appliances, manufacturing did not disappear from the United States. Rather, U.S. compa-
nies made all-out efforts to think about the ways to enhance their competitiveness and also
worked very hard to learn from Japanese companies.

When you lock at overseas markets over a long span, you will see stable growth. Today, our
overseas sales of construction and mining equipment account for over 60% of their total sales.
We are now positioned to take advantage of the overseas production bases that we established
in the mid-1990s, and it is our current task to further enhance their cost competitiveness. When
we look at these plants from the perspective of the production management and technologies
accumulated at our Japanese plants, we see plenty of room left for us to improve their produc-
tivity. There are many important roles that Japanese manufacturing technologies can play in
helping overseas plants have top-level cost competitiveness in their respective regions.

In addition to manufacturing products in the most efficient manner, the creation of unrivaled
products is also a very important theme of the reform based on the “Spirit of Manufacturers” at
Komatsu. Unified teams from development and production are working on this challenging task.

Komatsu substantially reorganized the construction and mining equipment | | business to further stren gthen our founda-
business this April. What were the objectives behind it? Please also tell us

i’

! I -

‘r h f 1 tion from a global perspective and focus our
|

L about the major Improvements rom the prewous organlzatlon | management resources on it. We also carried

We changed the organization of our backbone

out thls organizational change to accelerate the implementing of the Growth Strategy for
Construction and Mining Equipment and accomplish a V-shaped recovery of profits.

Specifically, we are focusing our efforts on the following four areas: strengthening and ensuring
customer-driven attitudes among all employees; expanding profits and market shares outside
of Japan; increasing our gains in downstream markets, particularly in Japan; and enhancing the
productivity of overseas plants by demonstrating our advantages in manufacturing on a global scale.
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Komatsu has recently announced successive alliance agreements with ’
Volvo CE of Europe and Hitachi Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.,-of E
Japan. Please tell us the background and purpose of each. As you know, 1
the industrywide restructuring of automobile companjes accelerated on a
global scale, involving equity tie-ups, in the Iast half of the 1990s. | wonder ’
if your recent alliances are going to trigger such industrywide restructuring. z

In the past, our construction and mining equipment business was divided into three groups,
that is, Japanese sales, international sales and customer support, the latter of which mainly pro-
vided parts and services to customers worldwide. In line with the Growth Strategy for
Construction and Mining Equipment, we have integrated sales and services under the new struc-
ture. In addition to becoming “one face” organizationally to customers, we are further working to
change our service operations into a business. We also established the Solutions Department
and Used Equipment Business Department to step up our involvement in the downstream markets.

At the same time, we changed our conventional framework of domestic and overseas busi-
nesses to a new regional framework by dividing the world into five major regions—the Americas,
Europe, Southeast Asia and the Pacific, China, and Japan. As a result, we are now able to im-
plement optimal strategies that are appropriate for each region. In this light, we regard Japan as
one of the five regions. For each of these areas, the corresponding regional headquarters is re-
sponsible for conducting regional business with decentralized authorities, as a general rule. As
board members of these regional headquarters, the Komatsu directors represent the interests of
Komatsu. | am responsible for Japan and the Americas, while Executive Vice President
Toshitaka Hagiwara handles Southeast Asia and the Pacific as well as China, and Executive
Managing Director Kazuhiro Aoyagi covers Europe. As teams, these regional directors and their
respective regional headquarters are now better positioned to take quicker action on the impor-
tant issues of their regions. For other regions, such as the Commonwealth of Independent
States, the Middle East and Africa, where we expect to see a growing number of opportunities,
we have also strengthened our capabilities under the renewed organization. We will continue to
expand business mainly through exports from Japan. In addition, the presidents of the
Development and Production divisions are responsible for the corresponding global operations
and are promoting the reform based on the “Spirit of Manufacturers.”

' ' 777777 For each agreement, we are still working
on the details. However, our basic objec-
tives for each are to strengthen our cost
competitiveness and enhance the use of
our management resources. As both
companies have established their own
brands and we are competing with each

ﬁuichi Seguchi, President and CEQ ﬂ
Hitachi Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.,
’ left, and Masahiro Sakane announce the
‘ alfliance at a joint press conference.

[

of them, there would be no benefits from a cooperation in sales and services. Rather, alliances
without equity tie-ups should be free of market dominance and provide us with all kinds of chal-
lenging possibilities. For these reasons, | am excited about future developments. Always keep-
ing the attitude that one can learn from others, | would like to actively incorporate their good
points. In developing cooperative relations, the three parties will engage in fair competition but
will shake hands in enhancing cost competitiveness. This is a new type of alliance, and | feel
proud of it. While we will be building on cooperative relations with the two, we will further refine
our original technologies and develop new concepts. in this way, | would like to provide prod-
ucts, services and systems that feature unique and superior advantages.

As to Volvo CE, we are going to collaborate in the production and development of compo-
nents for construction equipment. For the first phase, we are going to consign the production of
cabs of our design to Volvo CE for small wheel loaders, which we produce in Europe and North
America. We are also discussing possibilities for the cross supply and joint development of
power-train components other than engines, such as axles and transmissions. We will continue
our discussions for other cooperative relations that would be beneficial for the two of us.
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You have always emphasized the importance of communication. { under- 4
stand that you are making more aggressive efforts than before to have |
| opportunities for direct communication with employees. !

|

8 [T ]

With Hitachi Construction Machinery, we are looking into cooperative relations in cross supply
and joint procurement of mainly components for construction and mining equipment. The back-
ground of this alliance was a change in our business environment, that is, the continued shrink-
age of the construction equipment market, particularly in Japan. Komatsu has led other
competitors in meeting the changing environment by twice restructuring Japanese production.
To further sharpen our cost competitiveness, we have concluded that we need to cooperate
with Hitachi Construction Machinery and take advantage of the economies of scale. In the past,
we cooperated with them in cross supply of steel castings and logistics. Under the present
arrangement, | believe that the two of us should be able to generate more benefits than before
by effectively utilizing each other’s high-leve!l production technologies and production bases
both in Japan and abroad. | think cooperation similar to what we are going to have in Japan will
also be possible abroad, where we both have plants.

T Since | became president last year, | have

met with employees and suppliers in
Japan and abroad on every possible op-
portunity. During such meetings, 1 directly

T I

describe the management conditions of Komatsu and explain my own thoughts concerning
where | am leading Komatsu. | do this because | want all employees of the Komatsu Group to
have a proper sense of crisis and demonstrate their individual skills to the fullest capacity in
order to overcome our present situation.

With most of my colleagues now retired, | often speak about my personal experience of join-
ing Komatsu in 1963. In that year, Komatsu was in top gear and preparing to meet the market
entry of Caterpillar Inc., which had been announced earlier. All employees, from R&D, produc-
tion and sales to services, were working to capture the opinions and requests of customers from
their respective professional viewpoints. Then, project teams thoroughly reviewed such valuable
information and made concerted efforts to improve the quality of our bulldozers, the mainstay
product at that time. When 1 look back on those days now, | may say that we were only able to
produce those bulldozers, which could match those of the world’s most powerful company in
the industry, in such a short time because each and every Komatsu employee shared the same
sense of crisis concerning the existence of the company.

Of course, business and other conditions are totally different today. While it was the problem
of Komatsu alone at that time, some of the conditions that we are facing today are also found
for all of Japan. In a sense, therefore, our current situation may be more serious than it was
then. However, as an employee, | have personally experienced Komatsu's spirit of facing every
challenge and its power in solidarity to meet a crisis. When you share the same sense of crisis, a
spirit of rising to the challenge will emerge. To accomplish this, | believe it is best that | make a
personal commitment to direct communication with employees and formulate a consensus.
Whether it be a nation or company, the winner is always the one that can point to all members
having worked together to generate ideas before anyone else while sharing the same sense of
crisis and future direction. This is well proven in history.




Moving Onward with the Reform Based
on the “Spirit of Manufacturers” Concept

By upholding the reform based on the “Spirit of Manufacturers” as a management initiative,
Komatsu is reaffirming the basics of “providing the products, hardware and software alike,
which customers are happy to own.” All employees, from product planning, design, procure-
ment and production to sales and services, are working together to offer original ideas and

are taking up the challenge of making better products through sharing a sense of unity.

" Enhancing Product
' Competitiveness with

“Unrivaled
Quality

- Transferring Produ‘ction
- Technologies
- Globally

' Sharpening Our
' Technologies to

Manufacture
Unique
Products

\
\

We are striving for Unrivaled Quality by expanding our commitment to the “Spirit of
Manufacturers” concept with which we aim to improve our profitability. In other words,
we are going to create overwhelming sales points so that customers can clearly under-
stand the quality of the products they are buying.

For future product planning, we are going to realize one unmatched feature and corre-
sponding added value in every product, rather than the conventional approach of trying
to improve all categories at once to a small degree.

To further promote our reform, it is indispensable for each plant of our global production* L

network to grow into a plant equipped with top-level manufacturing technologies in its
respective region.

To transfer our Japanese production technologies based on many years of experience
to overseas plants, we have clearly defined the roles of mother plants in Japan, which
promptly standardize technologies designed to substantially reduce standard variable
costs (SVCs), and of large-lot production plants, which receive such technologies and
specialize in improving SVCs. We are now developing a structure to transfer and anchor
such Technologies Globally.

To enhance our cost competitiveness and facilitate the efficient use of our management
resources, we are proactively promoting alliances with other companies, including our
competitors. Meanwhile, we will continue upholding our tradition of in-house technology
development for main components, such as engines and hydraulic units, which are the
keys to the enhancement of product competitiveness and differentiation. Through devel-
opment and production as a unified team, we are working to sharpen our technologies to
Manufacture Unique Products so that no one else can come close.
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Reporting from Where the Action Is
At Komatsu, the reform based on the “Spirit of Manufacturers” concept is advancing steadily
from product development and production to sales and services. We would like to spotlight
the US-series hydraulic excavators with small rear-swing radius, which we éj
have developed by combining the compactness of minimal-swing radius
machines with the performance of standard machines. We have recently
positioned this US series as our new standard of hydraulic excavators.

In the following, we would like to give our readers a brief

look of what our people are doing.

UU-series hydraulic excavators with minimal-swing radius feature a structure that maximally
reduces protrusion when their upper structure turns, rendering them capable of 380-degree
turns virtually within their body width. Thanks to this feature, UU-series machines have
gained high appraisals for their performance and safety in urban sites in which job space is
often very confined.

Based on this UU series, we have developed and broadened the line of the US series with
small rear-swing radius, which features a stability and performance on a par with those of
standard machines. We have also made other improvements to enhance their product com-
petitiveness through model renewals, including adding to the operator’s comfort by providing
meore space (o work in.

Eric Wilde

P
Product Manager for Hydraulic Excavators |

Komatsu America Corp. 257

[ntroducing Japanese Concepls to the New Market % Wik

“At KAC, we have placed a large focus on the promotion of the US-series excavators
because they truly differentiate us from the competition.

“Our customers were initially opposed to the concept of the tight tail-swing excavators.
They couldn’t understand how “less” machine could result in “more” productivity. To
overcome the customer resistance to the US series, we actively promoted our distribu-
tors to demonstrate the machines. As a result, customers have found that the US series
machine is as productive as a standard machine and, in many applications, much more
productive. Now Komatsu customers are showing us new applications for the tight tail-
swing machines. Another initial comment was that the typical North American operator
couldn’t fit comfortably in such a small cab. However, with the newly designed GALEO

PC158USLC backfilling around the

foundation of a new hospital building
in New Jersey cab, this problem has been solved.

L




Masafumi Tsuji

Deputy Sentor Chief Engineer
Hydraulic Excavator Development Group
Construction Equipment Technical Center 1

Development Division

Kaoru Adachi
Chief Engineer

Research and Development Group

Manufacturing Engineering Development

Center
Production Division

Norihiko Tanigéwa
Engineer

Reform and Project D
Osaka Plant :

Production
Division

epartment

“Not only for the US series but also for other new “value-added” products, we have
focused our efforts on creating training materials and training the distributor sales group.
By training the salespeople so they could be product experts, we felt we could make the
largest impact with our new models. One additional but very important benefit from this
training is we have found what our distributors need from us to make our new lineup of
excavators successful.”

s rAcmihE o n - PURCIE Jo | r Satal I
meormporaiing -~ ooied Imprevements into Stand s lachines

“By all means, the US-series machines are based on the UU series. However, when we

were transforming the concept of the US series having the minimal-swing radius of the
UU series and the performance of a standard machine into reality, we had to overcome a
number of challenging tasks, such as improved stability and work speed, reduced noise
and more space in the cab, and serviceability. For the proclamation of the US series as
our standard machines today, we have diligently cleared each task, and thus firmly
enhanced the competitiveness of our products.

“Our commitment to environmental concerns, safety and IT utilization remains
unchanged as our goals for the development of next-generation machines. They have
been represented already in the form of customer needs. So we have placed a lot higher
figures on our goals, which should be unmatched by any of cur competitors, and we are
working to achieve them. This is the approach we are taking for the development of next-
generation machines.

“At Komatsu, we have very decisive advantages over our competitors, that is, in-house
development and production technologies for main components such as engines and
hydraulic units. So, by converging the vectors of research, development and production,
we are well prepared to overcome the challenging task of developing products with
Unmatched Quality at lower costs.”

Utilizing Original ([deas and Technologies in Actual Production

“As the demands for further cost reductions and the outstanding improvement of produc-
tion efficiency are growing and becoming more urgent day by day for production, we are
aggressively introducing new production technologies.

“We strongly believe technologies and ideas that can form the basis to enhance the
product competitiveness are most accumulated with us who are directly involved in man-
ufacturing. At Komatsu, we have implemented projects that called for horizontal integra-
tion linking different departments in the past. For the development of next-generation
construction machines today, we have commenced theme-specific, full-scale projects for
which related teams are transcending the conventional organiza’iiqnal boundaries of
research, development and production. We are working to introdpce‘ new technologies
with which we can create products with an unmatched advantage. }:‘

“In the past, cost reductions and other efforts to enhance product competitiveness by
production people were often confined within the specifications defined by design people
on their drawings. Today, however, we have totally removed the drganizational partitions
for our project teams, and, therefore, they can incorporate our id,éas‘ from the plant floor
into new products more directly. For this reason, the morale a“hd pride of prodggtigin
people are growing day by day.”




New Products
Construction and Mining Equipment

This best-selling hydraulic excavator achieves
both the largest volume of production in its
class and low fuel consumption. It comes with
the KOMTRAX" system as standard equip-
ment—an industry first. This system transmits a

@@Uﬂ bﬁf\ﬂ@ AGW S\A/@f S f@r variety of information from different sensors

mounted on the equipment in addition to the

Land & Envirorment location and tim.
Optimization

, ", The built-in Komatsu Hydrostatic Transmission Z *U 3 et §
3 / | allows the optimum travel speed (three modes) 1 PO \ :
o for the job conditions to be set, enabling high- ) / °

accuracy grading.
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WA470 Wheel Loader

This wheef loader is primarily used in
transporting and loading quarried
rocks, gravel and sand. Thanks to im-
proved work capacity and substan-
tially reduced fuel consumption, it
boasts both high productivity and
economy. As the KOMTRAX™ system
is equipped as a standard feature,
the owners of this model will also be
able to improve the efficiency of their
machine management.

BR550JG Mobile Crusher

Capable of processing a wide range
of materials, from hard rocks at quar-
ries to concrete debris at civil engi-
neering sites, this mobile crusher
improves work efficiency and reduces
the time for construction because of
its high crushing capabilities.

* KOMTRAX is currently available only in Japan.




Combining the compactness of mini-
mal-swing radius machines and the job
performance of standard machines,
this excavator is designed not only for
work in confined spaces, such as pipe-
faying and road construction in urban

areas, but also for general civil engi-
neering work that demands high pro-
ductivity.

As Komatsu'’s first in-house designed
articulated dump truck, this vehicle
incorporates advanced technologies,
such as an electronically controlled
countershaft transmission, and ensures
high-performance traveling and a com-
fortable operator environment even on
loose, narrow and slippery sites.

This mobile soil recycler is capable of process-
ing a wide range of soil, from waste soil at
construction sites to contaminated soil, and
recycling it into a high-quality product, using
high-performance mixing. Thanks to its mobility,
this equipment enables a substantial reduction
in costs for the disposal of waste soil and other
materials as well as those for new materials and
transportation.

SK815 Skid Steer Loader

Developed jointly with Komatsu Utility
Europe S.p.A. of Italy, this skid steer
loader is a global strategic model in
Komatsu’s compact construction equip-
ment business. While this skid steer
loader is primarily used in road- and
housing-related construction in North
America and Europe, it is designed for
a wide range of applications including
use by the livestock and dairy indus-
tries in Japan.

GD655 Motor Grader

This motor grader is used for grading
and finishing base courses and road-
beds as well as snow removal.
Its Komatsu-developed power train
achieves high fuel economy while
performing either powerful work or that

which requires precise blade control.

The world’s largest crawler dozer, this
mode! is used mainly for large-scale civil
engineering, quarrying and mining. With
leading-edge technologies incorporated in
its hydraulics and power train, the Super
Dozer offers unmatched productivity, dura-
bility and serviceability.
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Review of Operations

Business
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1899 2000 2001

Principal Products and Services

Construction and
Mining Equipment

B Excavating Equipment
Hydraulic excavators, mini excava-
tors and backhoe loaders

B Loading Equipment
Wheel loaders, mini wheel loaders
and skid steer loaders

M Grading and Roadbed
Preparation Equipment
Bulldozers, motor graders and
vibratory rollers

3 Hauling Equipment
Dump trucks and crawler carriers

B Tunneling Machines
Shield machines, tunnel-boring
machines and small-diameter pipe
jacking machines (lron Moles)

B Recycling Equipment
Mobile debris crushers, mobile soil
stabilizers and mobile tub grinders

equipment

B Other Equipment
Rough-terrain cranes, reach fower
cranes and railroad maintenance

H Engines and Components
Diesel engines, diesel generator
sets and hydraulic equipment

B Casting Products
Steel castings and iron castings

2002

Others

Electronics

Construction and
Mining Equipment

Business

Principal Products and Services

Eiectronics

H Electronic Materials
Sificon wafers, polycrystalline sili-
con and monosilane gas

B Communications Equipment and
Control Equipment
Network information terminals,
LAN peripheral equipment, mobile
tracking and communication termi-
nals and vehicle controllers

M Temperature Control Equipment
Thermoelectric modules and
manufacturing-related thermo-
electric semiconductor devices

B Metal Forging and Stamping
Presses
Large presses, small and medium-
sized presses and forging presses

M Sheet-Metal Machines and
Machine Tools
Press brakes, shears, laser cutting
machines, fine plasma cutting
machines and crankshaft millers

M Industrial Vehicles and Logistics
Forklift trucks, packing and trans-
port

B Others
Defense systems (ammunition and
armored personnel carriers), out-
door power equipment, prefabri-
cated office structures and recy-
cling plants



Construction and Mining Equipment

The mission of 2ur business, centering on construction, mining and utility (compact) equipment, is to contribute

to the prosper:
- while o™

v

of cur customers through safe, innovative products and services and glcbalized operations
Loare the stable growth of the Komatsu Group by establishing a solid position in each market.

=z g1 international leader in the quality and reliability of our products produced around

oo sneed of customer support, and safety and environment concerns.

Sales of construction and

Sales | i : -
(szisso}w) H mining equipment for fiscal
s p— 2002 increased 1.8% from
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the previous fiscal year, to
¥731.3 billion (US$5,499 mil-
lion), and consisted of ¥260.3
billion (US$1,958 million),
down 14.8%, in sales in
Japan and ¥470.9 billion
(US$3,541
14.2%, in sales outside
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Japan. Operating income for the year dropped sharply due to
reduced sales in the Japanese market and one-time expenses
resulting from reforms in the business structure.

The Company anticipates an improvement in earnings for
fiscal 2003 and beyond, thanks to the positive effects from the
reforms in business structure, such as fewer expenses and
a considerable reduction in the number of personnel, largely by
means of the voluntary retirement program implemented to-
ward the end of fiscal 2002. Additionally, the Company is work-
ing to improve profits by implementing the Growth Strategy for

the Construction and Mining Equipment Business. In line with

this move, the Company reorganized the construction and
mining equipment business to establish the Construction and
Mining Equipment Marketing Division in April 2002. The new
division is taking a central role in ensuring customer-driven
attitudes among all employees, reinforcing its involvement in
the downstream markets after the sales of new machines,
expanding market shares and profits overseas, and enhancing
the productivity of overseas plants. At the same time, in order to
achieve a V-shaped recovery of profits the Company is striving
to ensure the successful progress of alliances with competitors
that are designed to reinforce its cost competitiveness and
improve the efficiency of its management resources.

Review by Region

k ,%/‘;.,/ N Japan
”} T ' Japanese demand for construc-
7 tion equipment fell sharply from the
- previous year, influenced by cutbacks in public

investment as part of urgent measures to accelerate
structural reforms as well as by reduced private-sector con-
struction investment under the sluggish economy. In addition,
customers’ reluctance to invest was compounded by uncer-
tainty caused by the bankruptcies of large-scale general con-
tractors. In particular, with demand rapidly faltering in the last
half of the period, fiscal 2002 demand registered an over 50%

drop in terms of the value of factory shipments of construction

Komatsu Used Equipment Corp. holds reqular parade-like auctions.
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equipment for the Japanese market when compared to the last
peak period of fiscal 1997.

Komatsu worked to expand sales by teaming up with its dis-
tributors nationwide for aggressive sales promotions simulta-
neous with the market launchings of more than 20 new models
in the GALEO series, including a renewed model of its flagship
PC200 hydraulic excavator. The Company also stepped up
its involvement in downstream markets. However, its efforts
fell short of making up for the sizable fall in demand for
new equipment, and domestic sales declined sharply from the

previous year.

Accelferating Involvement in Downstream

Markets and Utilizing IT

With domestic demand for construction equipment continuing
to decline, Komatsu is accelerating its involvement in down-
stream markets, working to develop new demand for parts,
services, and rental and used equipment businesses to achieve
a V-shaped recovery in its construction and mining equipment
business. The Company leads Japan in the number of ma-
chines being used by customers and is thus well positioned to
utilize IT to strengthen its involvement and expand business in
each downstream market.

Regarding GALEO-series equipment, Komatsu has included
the KOMTRAX machine operations management system as
standard equipment in mainstay models. The KOMTRAX sys-
tem enables remote management of machine operations based
on information transmitted from the machines concerning their
location and operating and machine conditions. Utilizing KOM-
TRAX and other IT-based systems and its nationwide service
network, the Company is going to provide contract packaged
products designed to meet a variety of customer needs.
Komatsu is working to expand the product mix of contract

fLoamie= N =
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Information concerning machine

conditions is transmitted by the
KOMTRAX system mounted on

the machine. m
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services, ranging from the reduction of running costs and
unexpected trouble, such as theft and accidents, to a compre-
hensive plan to meet the diversified needs of customers.

In the rental business, Komatsu is working to expand sales
by promoting the comprehensive rental of civil engineering
equipment, which includes products other than construction
equipment, largely through affiliated rental companies to meet
more needs of customers. The Company is also working to fur-
ther improve earnings by reducing costs through streamlined
operations and concentrated purchasing.

While sales of new equipment have been sluggish in Japan,
the used equipment business has been expanding year after
year, reflecting Japanese customers’ attitudes toward maintain-
ing excessive inventories and buoyant overseas demand for used
equipment. Komatsu is working to strengthen its power to con-
trol the distribution of used equipment operations and build a
global circulation system as important tasks. The Company
has established the Used Equipment Business Department and
reinforced the trading capabilities of Komatsu Used Equipment
Corp., the major player in the Komatsu Group in this area.
Furthermore, the Company is working to secure high-quality
used equipment from affiliated rental companies and customers
by utilizing the KOMTRAX system in order to expand business.

Thriving Auctions for Used Equipment

Since 1994, Komatsu Used Equipment has regularly held auc-
tions for used equipment by inviting broker companies from
Japan and abroad. Held more than 40 times to date, these
auctions have witnessed a steady increase in the numbers of
visitors, units exhibited and deals made. In March 2002, the
company held auctions in Kobe, Fukuoka and Yokohama,
attracting a cumulative total of some 600 broker firms from
Japan, Southeast Asia, North America and other regions, and
accommodated the record-high deals of some 1,800 units.

Deciding to Transform Komatsu Zenoah Co.

into @ Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Komatsu resolved to transform Komatsu Zenoah into a wholly
owned subsidiary of Komatsu as of October 1, 2002, through a
stock-for-stock exchange.

Komatsu Zenoah occupies an important position in the Komatsu
Group's global strategy in the utility (compact) equipment
business, which promises continued growth. By transforming
the company into a wholly owned subsidiary, Komatsu aims to




further enhance management efficiency while maintaining the
cost competitiveness of the business by facilitating the collab-

oration of development and production capabilities of the two.
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/77 In North America, while
{ construction investment and

' housing starts remained steady, de-
mand for construction equipment declined for three successive
years. While carrying out well-defined measures focusing on
products and distributors, Komatsu implemented aggressive
sales activities by introducing new equipment in the GALEO
series. As a result, sales in the Americas improved compared
with the previous year. The Company also facilitated inventory
reductions among its distributors and began to see their orders
increase later in the year. In the mining equipment business,
demand for coal hit bottom, reflecting increased prices and
other factors, and Komatsu expanded sales of large bulldozers
to coal mines and achieved steady sales of super-large, elec-
tric-drive dump trucks to copper mines. In the utility (compact)
equipment business, the Company embarked on the production
of backhoe loaders at a new plant in Newberry, South Carolina,
during the last half of the period, while launching sales of new
skid steer loaders developed by Komatsu Utility Europe. As a
result, the Company is now prepared to take advantage of a
future recovery of demand in North America, the world’s largest
market for utility (compact) equipment.

Shipment in April 2002 of the first WB140 backhoe loader
from the Newberry Plant in South Carolina

Consolidating Local Subsidiaries for Lean Organization

Following the consolidation of Komatsu Utility Corporation into
Komatsu America International Company in August 2001,
Komatsu has initiated the consolidation of five U.S. sub-
sidiaries as part of the Reform of Business Structure project in
progress on a Groupwide basis. The five subsidiaries are:
Komatsu America Corp., Komatsu America International, Komatsu
Mining Systems, Inc., Komatsu Reman North America, Inc.,
and DataKom Publishing Corporation. Through this consolida-
tion, in which Komatsu America Corp. will take over the others,
Komatsu intends to facilitate a capacity cost cutback and thus
improve profitability by reducing the number of management
and administrative personnel. The Company will also ensure
quicker decision making and reinforce sales and services by
unifying the construction, mining and utility (compact) equip-

ment businesses.

Demonstrating Future Business Orientation

at CONEXPO 2002

In March 2002, CONEXPO 2002, an international trade fair for
construction equipment, was held in Las Vegas, Nevada, with
over 2,000 companies from around the world participating. The
Komatsu Group exhibited 21 models including GALEO-series
equipment. Stressing the theme of “Focused on Your Success,”
the Komatsu Group demonstrated its future business orienta-
tion of delivering solutions, both hardware and software, for

customers’ problems through not only construction equipment

but also a wide range of service programs.

Komatsu signed up many new customers at its popular site at CONEXPO

2002.
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Europe

In Europe, demand remained strong in
the United Kingdom and ltaly during the
year under review. Meanwhile, in addition to a fall in demand in
Germany, the largest European market for construction equip-
ment, demand turned downward in France, Spain and other
countries. As a result, the overall European market for con-
struction equipment, including utility (compact) equipment,
contracted after continued expansion for the last few years. In
such an environment, Komatsu secured sales at the same level
from the previous year by capitalizing on increased demand in
Eastern European nations and introducing renewed models of
skid steer and wheel loaders.

In October 2001, Komatsu's new wheel loaders attracted
keen attention at a special launch event in Berlin, Germany.
Komatsu distributors and many journalists from Germany and
other European countries appreciated the high levels of

productivity, fuel economy and operator comfort offered by the
new equipment.

During the year, Komatsu Utility Europe began sales of two
new models of skid steer loaders jointly developed by Komatsu.
Both SK714 and SK815 models incorporate a double-speed
motor and the Komatsu-original Closed Center Load Sensing
System, realizing outstanding travel performance, maneuver-
ability, safety and ease of maintenance. These are among
Komatsu’s global strategic equipment, and the Company is
also launching these models in North America, the world’s

largest market for utility (compact) equipment, and Japan.

Participating in Samoter 2002

Komatsu’s three European subsidiaries, Komatsu UK Lid.,
Komatsu Hanomag AG and Komatsu Utility Europe, exhibited
their products at Samoter 2002, an international earthmoving
and building machinery exhibition held in Verona, ltaly, in
February 2002. Held every three years, this exhibition is one of
three major exhibitions in Europe. Under the theme “Take the
Lead,” three Komatsu companies successfully made a dynam-
ic impression with their new machines, both inside and outside

the Komatsu exhibition building.

Komatsu is enhancing its market presence in Europe
with these and other products designed and manufac-
tured locally by subsidiaries.

SK714 skid steer loader from Komatsu Utility
Europe
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WA380 wheel loader from Komatsu Hanomag




Other Regions
Sales in other regions advanced
compared with the previous year, supported by successful
customer-driven sales and service activities. In Southeast Asia,
demand for equipment from the forestry industry slowed down,
although sales of mining equipment expanded in Indonesia.
PT Komatsu Indonesia Tbk continued to develop hydraulic ex-
cavator-based, application-specific attachments and compo-
nents for the forestry industry. The company also launched the
production and shipment of the PC200 model in the GALEO
series in January 2002. Many customers from different regions
of Indonesia came to the special ceremony for the market in-
troduction of the GALEO series, demonstrating great interest in
the series. The company expects that the GALEO-series equip-
ment should contribute to improved profits.

. T

Management staff of Industries Chimiques du Senegal (ICS), a leading phos-
phate mining operator of the country, with an after-sales manager of BIA
S.A./N.V., a Komatsu distributor that supports a fleet of 26 Komatsu
machines

lem — .

In the Pacific region, Komatsu expanded sales for the year,
largely due to the delivery of 930E super-large dump trucks to
a coal mine in Australia.

In China, market demand continued to expand during the
year, supported by China’s membership in the World Trade
Organization and sponsorship of the Beijing Olympic Games in
2008. Komatsu expanded sales in China, centering on hydraulic
excavators produced by Komatsu Shantui Construction
Machinery Co., Ltd., a joint venture with a Chinese partner. To
further expand its business in China, Komatsu made concerted
efforts to strengthen its distributors under the leadership of
Komatsu (China) Ltd.

In the Middle East, the Company accelerated sales of large
bulldozers for use in agricultural land development. Sales in

Africa were also buoyant, centering on mining equipment.

Komatsu delivered 16 of its 930E
super-large dump trucks to a major
coal mine in Australia in 2001.
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Electronics
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ol to ¥76.7 billion (US$577 mil-
j ‘ lion). Sales in Japan dropped
L ' 42.1%, to ¥43.0 billion
(US$324 million), while sales
outside Japan fell 22.2%, to
¥33.6 billion (US$253 mil-

lion) for the year.
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In Komatsu's silicon wafer
business, the Company stepped up its restructuring efforts to
meet the drastic change in the business environment.
Concerning Komatsu Silicon America, In¢., which had discon-
tinued its operations, Komatsu decided not to reuse it as a
manufacturing plant for silicon wafers and instead to sell or
dispose of the company’s fixed assets. As to the polycrys-
talline silicon business, Advanced Silicon Materials LLC (ASiMI)
moved forward in fundamentally reducing its production ca-
pacity by means of consolidating its production lines. Accord-
ingly, the Company reevaluated the fixed assets of Komatsu
Silicon America and ASIMI and recorded impairment losses of
¥24.9 billion and ¥27.2 billion, respectively. These two businesses

L
Komatsu Electronic Metals is aggressively advancing its technologies to meet ever-higher integration needs for semi-
conductor devices.

20 [T

-3 for semiconductors, semiconductor manufacturing equipment, FA and OA
..cherals as the core business domains of our electronics business. Qur mission
e Aiga grow'” ooad on technological innovation by providing creative products and services and
g e st = . mer for customers. We are working to become a leading international supplier

@ that oz e @ contributions to improving customers’ productivity and competitiveness.

are now prepared for self-driven reconstruction in their respec-

tive fields.

Komatsu Electronic Metals Co., Ltd.

Komatsu Electronic Metals has tightened the focus of its pro-
duction in Japan and Taiwan since 1999 and enhanced its
market presence in these two regions as its basic policy. The
company exerted all-out efforts on the reinforcement of its cor-
porate strengths by enhancing product competitiveness, mainly
for 200mm wafers, and production efficiency as well as by reduc-
ing capacity costs. On a nonconsolidated basis, the company
sustained ordinary profit of ¥94 million (US$707 thousand). A
drastic fall in demand adversely affected sales, which declined
33.9%, to ¥48.7 billion (US$366 million), for the year. Formosa
Komatsu Silicon Corporation, a joint venture with a local partner
in Taiwan, met a sharp fall in demand at the time of its full-scale
production start-up and recorded poor business results. Komatsu
Electronic Metals registered consolidated sales of ¥52.3 billion
(US$393 million), a decline of 33.4% from the previous year,
and an ordinary loss of ¥5.1 billion (US$39 million).

Note: Sales and ordinary profits on both consolidated and nonconsolidated
bases (as shown here) are based on Japanese accounting standards
and disclosed by Komatsu Electronic Metals.




Working to Make a Difference in Technologies

Komatsu Electronic Metals has been working jointly with
Komatsu’s Research Division to enhance the product competi-
tiveness of its 200mm silicon wafers, its mainstay product line.
Along with growing demand for high-performance semicon-
ductor devices, the quality requirements for silicon wafers are
becoming more stringent in regards to the flatness of their sur-
faces, light point defect (LPD) and purity. In response, the com-
pany is researching high-precision crystal growth, wafer
processing and other technologies to develop and commercial-
ize new products for customers.

With respect to 300mm silicon wafers, the company has a
monthly production capacity of 10,000 pieces at its Miyazaki Plant.
In addition to further expanding its technological development
efforts, the company plans to gradually increase the production
capacity of the plant as it assesses future developments in de-
mand. The company will also consider alliance possibilities.

Advanced Silicon Materials LLC (ASiMI)

Demand for polycrystalline silicon for semiconductors sharply
dropped, adversely affected by the inventory adjustments of
silicon wafer manufacturers, which had resuited from the
worldwide decline in the market for semiconductors.

The business results of ASiMI worsened from the previous
year, reflecting an extraordinary loss resulting from the impair-
ment loss of its fixed assets in addition to reduced sales of
polycrystalline silicon. Concerning its Butte Plant in Montana,
the company concluded that it would be difficult to sustain a
sufficient rate of operation for the time being and recorded an
impairment loss of ¥13.4 billion. ASiMI also decided to discon-
tinue production at the Moses Lake Plant in Washington and
recorded a loss of ¥15.9 billion for the year, including an impair-
ment loss on its fixed assets. The company has signed a letter
of intent with Renewable Energy Corporation AS of Norway to
establish a joint venture to convert the latter plant into one
dedicated to producing polycrystalline silicon for solar applica-
tions. The two companies have begun discussions on more
specific matters.

Komatsu Electronics, Inc.

Demand for thermoelectric modules for use in fiber optic com-
munication networks surged in the previous fiscal year on the
back of global telecommunication network infrastructure devel-

opment and the expanded use of the Wavelength Division

Multiplexing method for large-scale data transmission. However,
Komatsu Electronics experienced a sharp and drastic down-
turn in sales of thermoelectric modules in fiscal 2002, due to
the impact of reduced capital investment and inventory adjust-
ments among telecommunications equipment manufacturers in
North America. Demand also remained slack for temperature-
control semiconductor manufacturing equipment, and the

company’s fiscal 2002 sales declined substantially. With re-

spect to earnings, the company strengthened its efforts to cut

capacity costs through a substantial reduction of employees

and other means; however, it had to record a loss for the year.

GIGAPHOTON INC.

GIGAPHOTON, an affiliated company accounted for by the eq-
uity method, is responsible for Komatsu’s excimer laser busi-
ness. In fiscal 2002, the company continued its R&D into
industry-leading, next- and post-next-generation technologies,
while restructuring and reinforcing its global sales and service
network. However, these efforts failed to compensate for re-
duced demand, and sales for the year declined. In terms of
earnings, despite reduced capacity and production costs, fis-
cal 2002 turned out to be a difficult year for the company.

Under such conditions, the company received an order for
its KrF (Krypton Fluorine) excimer laser from ASM Lithography
B.V. of the Netherlands for use as a light source in scanners.
ASMLU’s first scanner was installed at a major DRAM manufac-
turer in South Korea.

Also during the year, GIGAPHOTON launched sales of
REDeeM, a new system capable of remotely diagnosing ex-
cimer lasers. This system enables not only near real-time moni-
toring of such major components as the laser chamber but also
information sharing among engineers of semiconductor manu-
facturers, stepper makers and GIGAPHOTON. The company
expects that the new system will contribute significantly to its
differentiation from competitors and facilitate sales of excimer

lasers as well.

By incorporating thermoelectric modules, Komatsu and Komatsu Electronics
have jointly developed this small chiorofiuorocarbon-free temperature control
device for use in semiconductor manufacturing. In addition to its compact
size, the new device meets the needs for lower power consumption, no use
of chloroffucrocarbons and high-precision temperature control.
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Others

Sales from other operations

Sales {11 illi

Bilions of yery ] totaled ¥227.7 billion
800r (US$1,713 million) for fiscal
240 _ — - 2002, consisting of Japanese

sales of ¥174.7 billion
(US$1,314 million) and over-
seas sales of ¥53.0 billion
(US$399 million), down 15.5%
and 1.2% from the previous
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year, respectively. The over-

all decline of 12.6% reflects
the reduced sales of Komatsu Forklift Co., Ltd., in addition to
the effect of unconsolidating Komatsu Construction Co., Ltd.,
after the sale of its equity. Meanwhile, sales to Japan’s
Defense Agency remained steady in spite of a decrease in
sales resulting from the partial completion of commissioned
projects. Sales in the industrial machinery business improved

from the previous year.

Komatsu Forkiift Co., Lid.

Sales of Komatsu Forklift for the year fell 14.1% from the previ-
ous year, to ¥89.8 billion (US$676 million), as the company
faced a sharp drop in demand for industrial-use vehicles in
Japan and overseas.

The company launched 17 renewed models in the battery-
driven Arion Plus series in response to growing battery-driven
forklift trucks in the Japanese market. Nevertheless, such efforts
fell short of countering the reduced market demand.

In the U.S. market, the company’s subsidiary facilitated a series
of rationalization measures, including a reduction in manpower

and a consolidation of business bases, while strengthening its

An Arion Plus battery-driven  —__
forklift truck, developed by
Komatsu Forklift
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sales network by acquiring a sales company and restructuring
distributors. While the company expanded its market share,
sales for the year declined. In Europe, the company completed
the transfer of production and sales functions to a subsidiary of
Linde AG of Germany, preparing for full-scale operations from
next fiscal year. In Southeast Asia and China, the company re-
inforced its sales networks. Despite these measures, overseas
sales for the year decreased, due to a substantial drop in demand
in the United States, the largest market of the world.

Also during the year, Komatsu Forklift continued to forge its
alliance with Linde. While the company’s U.S. manufacturing
subsidiary began the OEM supply of forklift trucks to Linde’s
U.S. subsidiary, Linde’s Chinese subsidiary embarked on the
production of Komatsu Forklift trucks. To further sharpen its
competitiveness through an expanded product range and sales
capability, the company plans to consolidate the capabilities
and product lineups of a Southeast Asian subsidiary of STILL
GmbH of Germany, a leading manufacturer of battery-driven fork-
lift trucks and member of the Linde Group, into its local sub-
sidiary. The company also intends to engage in the joint
development of products, incorporating its technological expert-
ise with that of Linde, as well as the reciprocal supply of cost-
competitive components to heighten its product competitiveness.

Deciding to Transform Komatsu Forkiift into

a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Komatsu

Komatsu resolved to transform Komatsu Forkiift into a wholly
owned subsidiary as of October 1, 2002, through a stock-for-
stock exchange. As competition intensifies worldwide in the
forklift truck market, Komatsu and Komatsu Forklift have con-
cluded that it is necessary for the forklift truck business to fur-
ther strengthen its cooperation within the Komatsu Group and
manage Komatsu Forklift more dynamically. The company’s
becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of Komatsu is expected
to further expand the forklift truck business. Following the
change, Komatsu Forklift plans to become a joint-venture com-
pany of Komatsu and Linde to reinforce its competitiveness on
a global basis and improve its earnings capability.

Komatsu is determined to improve the earnings capability of
each business as well as its corporate value by optimizing the
management structure of major companies in the Komatsu
Group and by improving management efficiency.




Industrial Machinery Business

Komatsu Industries Corporation, which produces sheet metal
machinery and medium-sized presses, continued to implement
customer-tailored, proposal-oriented sales and service activi-
ties for products with unique features. These products include
the transfer presses of the E2W series and Twister Fine Plasma
cutting machines as well as laser cutting machines made by
TRUMPH GmbH of Germany, an alliance partner. As a result, in
spite of the extremely tough market conditions, the company
expanded both its sales and profits for the year, after similarly
posting profits in the previous year.

During the year, the company became the first in the world
to commercialize a large, fully closed AC servo press success-
fully and launched sales of these presses under the name of
H2F Hybrid AC Servo Press Series in February 2002. In addi-
tion to its high productivity and processing precision, the H2F
series features a significant reduction in noise compared with
other mechanical presses as well as high economy. Orders for the
series have already been increasing, and the company expects
the product will facilitate continued business improvement.

Also during the year, Komatsu Industries forged cooperative
relations with TRUMPH and introduced a new service network.
In Japan, some 400 cutting machines made by TRUMPH are
used by customers, and the company anticipates dynamic
growth in demand for TRUMPH models. By integrating the
management resources of the two, Komatsu Industries is going
to provide higher-quality services and customer support. With
three service centers and six service facilities in Japan, the

company is improving its support programs.

The Komatsu-developed H2F300 press is the world’s first large AC
Servo press.

Fiscal 2002 sales of large presses advanced, supported by
expanded investment by Japanese automobile manufacturers
mainly in their overseas plants. With customer demand for cost
reductions and competitive pricing intensifying, Komatsu is im-
plementing the S521 Campaign, designed to meet diversified
customer needs in a speedy and simplified manner. The cam-
paign is in response to a structural change in the market for
large presses largely resulting from expanding demand from
manufacturing customers of automobile bodies and Chinese
and Eastern European markets. As part of this campaign, the
Company is working to enhance customer satisfaction by es-
tablishing Digital Engineering Technology, which integrates all
information from design to installation and after-sales services,
shortened lead times and prompter responses for after-sales
services. The Company is also working to facilitate a significant

reduction in costs by emphasizing capacity cost cutbacks.

Komatsu Zenoah Co.

In agricultural and forestry equipment, Komatsu Zenoah worked
to expand sales of its mainstay outdoor equipment by launch-
ing the EZ Start brushcutter, which features significantly im-
proved ignition and is the world's most lightweight hedge
trimmer. Against the backdrop of reduced total demand, sales
in this market decreased from the previous year. Meanwhile,
sales of environmental equipment increased, supported by
expanded sales to rental companies. Overseas, while the com-
pany received substantially expanded orders for blowers that
were developed for the U.S. market and brushcutters for the
Chinese market, it was not able to cover the declined sales of
hobby and OEM engines. Overseas sales for the year declined
slightly from the previous year. As a result, total sales of
forestry and other equipment declined slightly from the previ-
ous fiscal year.
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Protection of the Earth’s Environment

We at Komatsu define protection of the Earth’s environment as an important management issue. In addition to

the obvious task of reducing the environmental stress of our own operations, it is our responsibility as 2 manu-

facturer to provide innovative products, services and systems to customers who are working themselves to

reduce environmental stress. To pass a beautiful naturai environment down to future generations, we contem-

plate “what we can do” and “what we must do” and proactively involve ourselves in ail related tasks.

PC200 hydraulic excavators are powered
by IPA-developed engines that meet the
Tier if emission standards of the United
States and Stage Il ernission standards
of Europe and Japan.

Komatsu-developed water-emuisified fuef
engines achieve both super-clean emissions
and high-efficiency combustion.

Warket Introductions of Envirenment-Friendly Products
Komatsu joined hands with Cummins Inc. to establish Industrial Power Alliance, Ltd.
(IPA), in 1998. Since then, IPA has promoted the R&D of next-generation engines that
stay ahead of the emission control regulations of various countries of the world. |PA-
!developed engines, which meet the Tier [l emission standards of the United States as
iwell as the Stage |l emission standards of Europe and Japan, power the GALEO series of
construction equipment, launched in 2001. These engines also incorporate technologies
designed to reduce environmental stress through low fuel consumption by means of
mode controls as well as low-noise design.

Komatsu’s diesel engines are used not only as a key component for construction and
[mining equipment, but also as the source of power for railway trains and marine vessels
as well as power generators and other industrial applications.

Komatsu has successfully commercialized the water-emulsified fuel engine
STA12V140 for stationary power generation application. This engine achieves outstand-
ing reduction of NOx and the soot contents of engine exhaust by using water-emulsified
fuel, a mixture of water and fuel. The new engine features NOx emission volumes of less
than 100ppm, about 90% lower than the NOx emission volume prescribed by the Air
Pollution Control Act of Japan. It also emits such clean gas that black smoke is invisible
ito the eye. As a result, the new engine can be used in urban areas, where applicable reg-
ulations are especially stringent. Komatsu Diesel Co., Ltd., launched its sales to power

generator manufacturers in October 2001.

‘ Reduction of Envirenmental Stress from Production
©©@auton

Reduction of Energy Consumption

Komatsu has been working aggressively to reduce its consumption of energy, such as
relectricity, fuel gas and fuel oil, for manufacturing activities. Komatsu has set the goal of
a 25% reduction for fiscal 2011 from the fiscal 1991 level of energy consumption in

terms of crude oil-converted amount per unit of manufacturing value.
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Komatsu do Brasil Lida. acquired ISO
14001 certification in December 2001,

Participants confirmed the validity of high-
economy operations of hydraulic excava-
tors through actual loading at the Techno
Center in November 2001.

Promotion of Zeroc Emissions* Campaign

Komatsu has been promoting its Zero Emissions campaign, designed to reduce the
amount of industrial waste and recycle such waste. In fiscal 2002, our Mooka, Osaka,
Awazu and Komatsu plants achieved Zero Emissions, following the Oyama Plant, which
successfully attained Zero Emissions in fiscal 2001 and was the first in the industry to do
so. These plants all achieved Zero Emissions one year ahead of Komatsu’s original
schedule, which was to reduce the volume of industrial waste to a zero level at all
Komatsu plants for construction equipment in Japan by the end of fiscal 2003. Also during
the year under review, the Miyazaki Plant of Komatsu Electronic Metals Co., Ltd., accom-
plished Zero Emissions, leading all other silicon wafer manufacturing plants in Japan.

Note™: Komatsu defines Zero Emissions as a recycling rate of 99% or higher.
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Acquisition of ISO 14001 Certification

Komatsu has aggressively been promoting acquisition of ISO 14001 certification as an
important index to improve and anchor environmental management. In fiscal 2002, six
additional production facilities in Japan and abroad were certified for ISO 14001.

Support to Customers in Their Envirenmental Conservation Eforts

Komatsu is not only concerned about the environmental stress of its products and the
processes of their production, but also promotes reduction of environmental stress in the
life cycles of construction equipment, including machine operations by customers at
their job sites.

In response to a request by OBAYASHI CORPORATION, a major Japanese general
contractor, Komatsu held training seminars on fuel-efficient operations of construction
machines in 2001. At these seminars, which were held at the Techno Center—Komatsu’s
demonstration and training facility—participants compared the difference in fuel con-
sumption and CO, emissions between their regular ways of operating the machines and
Komatsu's recommended methods. To support environmental conservation efforts
by more customers, Komatsu is considering the holding of regular seminars at the
Techno Center.
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Greening the Environment with Plants

The Flower Associaiion of Japan welcomed its 40th anniversary in 2002. The Assoclation hes szen meidng son-

tributions to the creation of & comfortable environment by previding cherry U

the four seasons. Through s core activities of assisting in the develepmaent of

Hower projects, it produces saplings of cherry, peach and plum trezs—ail

neople since anclent times—and supplies them to varike, i
companies and other organizations in Japarn and overseas. Durl
ered over tweo million cherry saplings net only In Japen ut al

those who love cherry blossoms.

The Flower Asscociation of Japan: hitp://www.hanenokal.orjp
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The Association commenced its international exchanges based on cherry trees by ship-
ping saplings to Europe in 19686. It has shipped a cumulative sum of 170,000 saplings to
over 40 countries to date, offering the world opportunities for viewing blossoms. The
Association has also undertaken personnel exchanges to provide instructions for plant-
ing and growing trees. It has recently engaged in information exchanges on the Web,
studying possible new forms of international exchange based on cherry trees.

Cherry trees from the Association were
planted along the former site of the Bertin
Wall, which was taken down in 1889

N
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The Association has continued to pursue its research into varieties and the long-term
care of cherry trees over the years. Based on the research findings, the Association pub-
lished the Manual of Japanese Flowering Cherrfes in 1982, which describes 193 varieties.
Also available in English, it is one of the recommended books on plants in the United
iKingdom. Even 20 years after its publication, this book continues to enjoy a high reputa-
tion around the world as the best research book on cherry trees.

English version of the Manual of Japanese
Flowering Cherries

N PN

In April 2002, the Association held a 40th anniversary ceremony at the rooftop garden of
the Komatsu Building in Tokyo. This unique garden consists of two gardens: a 36-year-
old Japanese-style plot with cherry trees and other plants and 1-year-old Western-style
plot that mainly features flowers. Both gardens, managed by the Association, add

P

greenery to the urban environs of Tokyo.
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Financial Bev

Sales

Net sales in fiscal 2002 ended March 31, 2002 decreased 5.5%
from the previous fiscal year, to ¥1,035,891 million (US$7,789
million at US$1=¥133).

Sales in Japan dropped 18.5%, to ¥478,187 million
(US$3,595 million) and overseas sales rose 9.5%, to ¥557,704
million (US$4,193 million). As a result, the ratio of overseas
sales to consolidated net sales for the year rose to 53.8% from
46.5% in the previous fiscal year.

Japanese demand for construction equipment fell sharply
from the previous fiscal year, as customers’ desire for equip-
ment investment was critically influenced by cutbacks in public
investment by the government. Expanded sales from introduc-
ing renewed main models fell short of compensating for the
large fall in overall demand in the market. In North America,

a leading market for construction equipment, demand kept
declining for three consecutive years. In Europe, the market for
construction equipment contracted after continued expansion
for the last few years. In spite of the declined sales in these
markets, overseas sales improved over the previous fiscal year,
supported by expanded sales generated in other regions and
strong sales of mining equipment. As a result, sales of con-
struction and mining equipment increased 1.8% from the
previous fiscal year, to ¥731,340 million (US$5,499 million).

In the electronics business, reflecting the severe conditions
of the international IT-related market, demand for silicon wafers
and polycrystalline silicon as the raw material for silicon wafers
drastically decreased both in Japan and overseas. Sales of FA
equipment and LAN-related peripherals were sluggish, sales of
thermoelectric modules for use in fiber optic communication

Earnings {Losses)

networks suffered from a drastic drop in demand and those of
temperature-control semiconductor manufacturing equipment
were adversely affected by reduced capital investment in the
industry. As a result, sales from the electronics business dropped
34.8% from the previous fiscal year, to ¥76,769 million
(US$577 million).

With respect to other operations, sales of large presses ad-
vanced in the industrial machinery business, supported by ex-
panded investment by Japanese automobile manufacturers
mainly in their overseas plants. In the business of sheet metal
forming machinery and agricultural and forestry machines,
sales grew centering on products with unique features despite
the difficult business conditions. On the other hand, sales of
forklift trucks declined considerably from the previous fiscal
year due to reduced demand for industrial vehicles in Japan
and overseas.

As a result, sales from other operations declined 12.6% from
the previous fiscal year, to ¥227,782 million (US$1,713 million).
This decline was also affected by the exclusion of sales of
Komatsu Construction Co., Ltd., which became unconsolidated
in October 2000.

Overseas sales by region in fiscal 2002 were as follows:
sales in the Americas reached ¥262,341 million (US$1,972 mil-
lion), up 8.8%; sales in Europe increased 1.2%, to ¥128,029
million (US$963 million); sales in Asia (excluding Japan) and
Oceania advanced 7.9%, to ¥126,363 million (US$950 million);
and sales in the Middle East and Africa climbed 65.2%, to
¥40,971 million (US$308 million).

Cost of sales in fiscal 2002 decreased 1.5% from the previous
fiscal year, to ¥792,748 million (US$5,961 million). The ratio of
cost of sales to net sales grew 3.1 percentage points, to 76.5%.
Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses for the
year declined 2.8%, to ¥256,364 million (US$1,928 million),
keeping the ratio of SG&A expenses to net sales to 24.7%,
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a minimal increase of 0.6 percentage points over the previous
fiscal year, in spite of the big drop in net sales. As a result, op-
erating loss for fiscal 2002 amounted to ¥13,221 million (US$99
million), compared to profits of ¥27,815 million in fiscal 2001.
This deterioration was brought about primarily by worsened
conditions in the domestic construction and mining equipment
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business and in the electronics business.

Net interest and other income and expenses in fiscal 2002
generated a loss of ¥93,503 million {US$703 million), compared
with a loss of ¥7,751 million in the previous fiscal year. This
resulted from the fact that net other expenses in fiscal 2002
included the large cost of reform of business structure, such as
the impairment losses of fixed assets of electronics business-
related subsidiaries in the United States as well as the cost
of early retirement and transfers of employees to affiliated
companies in Japan.

As a resuit, loss before income taxes, minority interests and
equity in earnings for the fiscal year totaled ¥106,724 million
(US$802 million), compared with profits of ¥20,064 million for

Liquidity and Capital Resources

the previous fiscal year, and the percentage of loss before
income taxes, minority interests and equity in earnings to net
sales was minus 10.8% in fiscal 2002.

Equity in earnings of affiliated companies in fiscal 2002
amounted to ¥398 million (US$3 million).

As a result, the Company’s net loss in fiscal 2002 was
¥80,621 million (US$606 million).

On a per share basis, net loss amounted to ¥84.46 (US63.5¢).
Dividends per share were ¥6.00 (US4.5¢), as positive effects
from the reform of business structure should improve the
business results of the Company in fiscal 2003 and thereafter.
The corresponding figures for fiscal 2001 were ¥7.24 and
¥6.00, respectively.

Working capital in fiscal 2002 decreased 17.5% from the previ-
ous fiscal year, to ¥167,581 million (US$1,260 million), resulting
from declined sales and reduced assets. The current ratio in
fiscal 2002 declined 6.6 percentage points from the previous
fiscal year, to 128.3%.

Capital expenditures in fiscal 2002 decreased 6.1% from
the previous fiscal year, to ¥74,468 million (US$560 million).
The decrease resulted mainly from highly focused capital

Financial Condition

expenditures. Commitments for capital expenditures outstand-
ing as of March 31, 2002 totaled ¥2,900 million (US$22 million).

R&D expenses in fiscal 2002 declined 2.6% from the previ-
ous fiscal year, to ¥44,083 million (US$331 million), represent-
ing 4.3% of net sales. Fiscal 2002 expenses for advertising
and public relations activities dropped 4.7 %, to ¥5,119 million
(US$38 million), or 0.5% of net sales.

The Company continues to reduce its debt continuously, with
the cash provided by operating activities.

Cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2002 amounted to
¥45,392 million (US$341 million), an increase of ¥5,632 million
including ¥1,818 million of gain caused by adjustment for
change of fiscal period on some consolidated subsidiaries.
Net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2002 totaled
to ¥60,321 million (US$454 million), mainly by reducing trade
notes and account receivables and inventories, which is

Business Risk

however a decrease of ¥3,655 million from the previous fiscal
year. Net cash used in investing activities for the fiscal year
amounted to ¥16,933 million (US$127 million), a decrease of
¥18,209 million from the previous fiscal year. The decrease
resulted mainly from highly focused capital expenditures and
sale of idle assets. Net cash used in financing activities for the
fiscal year came to ¥40,455 million (US$304 million), a decline
of ¥35,408 million from the previous fiscal year. The amount is
used mainly in repayment of the debt and cash dividends.

The Company believes that, as an independent business entity,
it has its own management strategy and resources to win against
the competition within a foreseeable scope based on available
information. The market conditions for the Company’s individ-
ual businesses differ by region and change widely depending
upon economic and competitive conditions. Profitability of the
Company’s global construction and mining equipment business,
as its core operation, is affected primarily by the following factors:
¢ Further intensification of competition in the Japanese market,
where demand has declined considerably since 1997.

¢ Further reduction in demand in North America brought about
by greater-than-expected economic deceleration.

® A considerable decline in demand in Europe, owing to the
economic slowdown there.

¢ A delay in the recovery of demand for mining equipment.

» Significant increases in R&D expenses for construction and
mining equipment in order to meet more stringent environ-
mental protection regulations.

¢ Greater-than-expected fluctuations in foreign exchange rates
(especially vis-a-vis the U.S. dollar and the euro).
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With regard to the electronics business, the Company ex-
pects no financial burden resulting from sizable investments
for the time being. However, the Company considers that the
following factors could affect profitability: sharp changes in the
semiconductor market and declining sales prices due to unbal-
anced supply and demand, along with intensified competition.

Market Risk Exposure

Although the profitability of other businesses is also affected
by changes in their respective markets, this is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Company’s overall perform-
ance. :

The companies are exposed to market risk primarily from
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates
with respect to international operations and foreign currency
denominated credits and debts. In order to manage these risks
that arise in the normal course of business, the companies enter
into various derivative financial transactions pursuant to their

Foreign Exchange Risk

policies and procedures. The companies do not enter into de-
rivative financial transactions for trading or speculative purposes.
The companies are exposed to credit-related losses in the
event of nonperformance by counterparties to derivative financial
instruments. However, because of the counterparties’ high credit
ratings, none are expected to fail to meet their obligations.

To reduce foreign exchange risks against foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities, the companies execute
forward exchange contracts and option contracts in a range

of 50% to 100% based on their projected cash flow in foreign
currencies. Furthermore, to reduce foreign exchange risks in
relation to medium-term and long-term foreign currency de-
nominated assets and liabilities and to fix related costs, the
companies have executed such forward contracts for a portion
of their bonds and loans.

The following table provides information concerning deriva-
tive financial instruments of the companies in relation to foreign
currency exchange transactions existing as of March 31, 2002,
which are translated into yen at the rate used on that date,
together with the related weighted average contractual ex-
change rates as of March 31, 2002. As of March 31, 2002,
the notional amount of option contracts is ¥3,171 million
(US$23,842 thousand).

Millions of yen (except average contractual rates)

Forwards to sell foreign currencies: US$/Yen EUR/Yen GBP/EUR USS$/EUR Others Total
CONraCt AMOUNTS oo et ra e e eatbe e et te e s et ¥ 17,944 ¥ 5,444 ¥ 3,366 ¥ 1,083 ¥ 1,033 ¥ 28,870
Average contractual rates........ooociiiiiiicciii e 129.75 113.72 1.63 1.14 — —
Forwards to buy foreign currencies: GBP/EUR Yen/ZAR Yen/EUR US$/EUR US$/Yen Others Total
COoNtract @mMOUNES.......cooviv et ¥ 8802 ¥ 4,881 ¥ 2,994 ¥ 2,691 ¥ 2131 ¥ 5,729 ¥ 27,328
Average contractual rates ......c..occoeevvevivieenv v 0.62 11.40 113.46 0.88 100.13 — —
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Forwards to sell foreign currencies: US$/Yen EUR/Yen GBP/EUR US$/EUR Others Total
CONrAaCt @MOUNES ..eeiiiiiiiecrceiereeie ettt e s s e reesreensenmeenee e $134,917 $40,932 $25,308 $ 8,143 $ 7,767 $217,067
Forwards to buy foreign currencies: GBP/EUR Yen/ZAR Yen/EUR US$/EUR Us$/ven Others Total
COoNtract @MOUNTS.......ccci it ettt ene et eeaee s $66,932 $ 36,699 $22,511 $20,233 $16,023 $43,075 $205,473




interest Rate Risk

To reduce risks and hedge the cash flow, the companies en-
gage in certain interest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps and
cap option transactions for interest payment and interest re-
ceipt. Certain interest rate swap contracts are not qualified as
hedge and are recorded at the fair value and the resultant gains
are recognized as income.

The following tables provide information concerning deriva-
tives and other financial instruments of the companies that are
sensitive to changes in interest rates, mainly including interest

rate swaps, cross-currency swaps and debt obligations ex-
cluding capital lease obligations. For debt obligations, the tables
present principal cash flows and related weighted average in-
terest rates by expected maturity dates. For interest rate and
cross-currency swaps, the following tables present notional
amounts and weighted average receive and pay interest rates.
As of March 31, 2002, the notional amount and its average
strike rate of interest cap transactions are ¥63,238 million
(US$475,474 thousand) and 5.70%, respectively.

Long-term debt excluding capital lease obligations (inciuding due within one year)

Millions of yen

Expected maturity date

Average
interest rate Total 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter
U.S. dollar bonds ......cccocoviiiiiieciiiiiiec e, 6.97% ¥ 25051 ¥ — ¥ 15580 ¥ — ¥ 9461 ¥ — ¥ —
Japanese yen convertible
debentures/debentured bonds ...........c........l. 1.86% 62,447 — 27,447 — 35,000 — —
Euro medium-term notes .............. 2.46% 74,056 24,767 11,924 23,663 6,351 6,190 1,161
Loans, principally from banks .... 2.68% 125,402 14,872 37,784 22,193 6,060 10,119 34,374
TOtal oo e e ¥ 286,956 ¥ 39,639 ¥ 92,745 ¥ 45856 ¥ 56,872 ¥ 16,309 ¥ 35535
Interest rate and cross-currency swaps Millions of yen
Average interest rate Expected maturity date
Receive Pay Total 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter
Japanese yen interest rate swap ........... 032% 091% ¥ 65081 ¥ 22156 ¥ 7,474 ¥ 30,369 ¥ 5,082 ¥ — ¥ —
U.S. dollar interest rate swap.................. 1.77% 4.76% 92,781 48,533 29,125 11,902 2,762 — 459
Australian dollar interest rate swap......... 433% 4.92% 5,323 5,323 — — — — —
Yen/US$ cross-currency swap................ 0.90% 2.48% 65,972 20,500 11,818 20,918 6,118 5,618 1,000
Yen/EUR cross-currency swap.. ... 042% 3.64% 8,300 6,600 1,200 1,500 — — —
Others ..o 6,782 2,753 2,894 1,086 21 28 —_
Total ..o ¥ 245239 ¥105865 ¥ 52,511 ¥ 65775 ¥ 13,983 ¥ 5646 ¥ 1,459
Long-term debt excluding capital lease obligations (including due within one year) Thousands of U.S. dollars
Average Expected maturity date
interest rate Total 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter
U.S. dollar bonds ......ccccovviiimeniiiniiiiec e 6.97% $ 188,353 $ — $%117,218  $ — $71135 % — 3 —
Japanese yen convertible
debentures/debentured bonds .........cccoccviiinn. 1.86% 469,526 — 206,368 — 263,158 — —
Euro medium-term notes ....... 556,812 186,218 89,655 177,917 47,752 46,541 8,729
Loans, principally from banks 942,873 111,820 284,090 166,865 45,564 76,083 258,451
TOtAl .o $2,157,564 $298,038 $697,331 $344,782 $427,609 $122,624 $267,180
Interest rate and cross-currency swaps Thousands of U.S. dollars
Average interest rate Expected maturity date
Receive Pay Total 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter
Japanese yen interest rate swap ............ 0.32% 091% $ 489,330 $166,586 $ 56,195 $228,338 § 38,211 § — 3 —
U.S. dollar interest rate swap.......c.......... 177% 4.76% 697,602 364,910 218,985 89,489 20,767 —_ 3,451
Australian dollar interest rate swap......... 433% 4.92% 40,023 40,023 — — — — —_
Yen/US$ cross-currency swap . 0.90% 2.48% 496,030 154,135 88,857 157,278 46,000 42,241 7,519
Yen/EUR cross-currency swap 0.42% 3.64% 69,925 49,624 9,023 11,278 — — —
Others ..ot 50,992 20,699 21,759 8,165 158 211 —
TOtal .o $1,843,902 $795,977 $394,819 $494,548 $105,136 $ 42,452 $ 10,970
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Ten-Year Summary

Komatsu Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Millions of yen

(except per share amounts)

2002 2001 2000
For the fiscal pericd
BT SAIES ... tie ettt e et a et nebes ¥1,035,821 ¥1,096,369 ¥1,055,654
COSt OF SAIES ..ttt it e e e e 792,748 804,700 796,820
Income (loss) before income taxes, minority interests, equity
in earnings and cumulative effect of accounting changes...........ccccc i (108,724) 20,064 19,395
NET INCOME (JOSS) .1 vvieiei ettt st er e et e st n e s (80,621) 6,913 13,395
As percentage Of SAlES ......oviee i (7.8)% 0.6% 1.3%
Capital @XPENItUIES .....ccoviiii e e 74,468 79,310 57,728
At fiscal period-end
TOtAl ASSEES uvviitireiee ittt sttt et b et a e bt e e eh ettt et e n e tbennaenraeans ¥1,340,282 ¥1,403,195 ¥1,375,280
L eTd (g Te et=T o1 - | O PP 167,581 203,233 221,517
Property, plant and eqUIPMENt. ..o e e 408,301 438,795 397,534
Long-term debt—Iless current maturities ..........ccocvee v, 257,180 238,349 245,289
Shareholders’ EQUITY.......ccouvriiiiiii e 395,143 474,257 490,454
As percentage of total aSSetS........cociiicii 29.5% 33.8% 35.7%
Per share data
Net income (loss) per share:
BASIC .. etireeit ettt e et b et ee e teeeanrreeeans ¥ (84.48) ¥ 7.24 ¥ 13.85
DIIIEA ettt e s s e (84.46)) 7.24 13.76
Cash dividends Per Shar€.. ...t e e e e e ae s 6.00 6.00 6.00
Shareholders’ equity Per Share ........ccooeriiieiic e 414.02 497.12 507.26
Yen per U.S. dollar
2002 2001 2000
Cther information
Exchange rate into U.S. dollars
(per the Federal Reserve Bank of New York):
At fisCal PEHOA-ENA ... .i ittt e ¥133 ¥126 ¥103
Average for the fiscal pPeriod .......cccii i 126 112 110
Range:
HIGN ettt e ebe e 134 126 121
LOW - et ettt e ettt snre et 118 106 102

1. Net income in 1994 includes the cumulative effect of accounting changes for postretirement benefits other than pensions and income taxes.

2. Total assets and shareholders’ equity after 1995 include the effect of adopting SFAS No. 115.

3. In fiscal 1994, Komatsu America International Company, formerly Komatsu Dresser Company, was consolidated.

4. Working capital includes receivables due after one year.
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Millions of yen
{except per share amounts)

1999 7998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
¥1,061,597 ¥1,104,077 ¥1,098,916 ¥ 999,327 ¥ 918,910 ¥ 845,853 ¥ 869,928
807,255 826,627 827,665 763,045 702,416 649,512 662,408
(9,604) 40,252 45,769 32,431 24,482 13,833 30,757
(12,378) 19,241 18,160 14,291 10,225 1,303 3,037
(1.2)% 1.7% 1.7% 1.4% 1.1% 02% 0.3%
114,874 123,026 70,604 47,499 41,492 30,032 47,156
¥1,524,600 ¥1,561,662 ¥1,512,730 ¥1,593,003 ¥1,541,972 ¥1,375,966 ¥1,323,960
256,039 212,096 228,404 260,296 254,992 221,274 249,419
440,706 393,603 299,008 264,842 257,219 260,720 260,999
292,250 196,898 163,590 140,208 140,550 142,578 207,027
495,643 524,201 541,933 606,444 575,534 505,871 516,409
32.5% 33.6% 35.8% 38.1% 37.3% 36.8% 39.0%
¥ (12.77) ¥ 19.60 ¥ 1826 ¥ 14.24 ¥  10.19 ¥ 1.30 ¥ 3.03
(12.77) 19.32 18.02 14.10 10.19 1.30 3.03
7.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00
511.54 540.50 550.79 604.07 573.29 504.28 515.05

Yen per U.S. dollar

1999 7998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
¥118 ¥133 ¥124 ¥107 ¥87 ¥102 ¥115
128 124 113 96 99 107 124
145 133 124 107 105 114 135
113 115 105 84 87 101 115
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Komatsu Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2002 and 2001

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 1)

Assets 2002 2001 2002
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (NOTE 1). ... e e ¥ 45,392 ¥ 39,760 $ 341,293
T2 012 T0 (=T 0T o 1] 1 £ O PP PR SRUP R PPRPRE 1,076 1,110 8,090
Trade notes and accounts receivable, less allowance

for doubtful receivables of ¥15,221 million ($114,444 thousand)

in 2002 and ¥10,998 million in 2001 (Notes 3 and 8).....cc.ecccvvvvieiviiiieice e 337,093 394,658 2,534,534
Inventories (NOTES 1T @NA 4) ... et e e 266,952 255,801 2,007,158
Deferred income taxes and other current assets (Notes 1 and 13)......ccoviieinnn 108,429 94,799 822,774
I = g =TT OO 759,942 786,128 $ 5,713,849
Investments
Investments in and advances to affiliated companies (Notes 1 and 6)...........ccceeene.. 23,169 24,531 174,203
Investment securities (Notes 1, 5aNd 19) .o 50,651 68,788 380,835
L0431 U PO OO USSP PPOPORP 272 1,860 2,045
B e = =t L OO ORPRUPUR 74,092 95,179 557,083
Land and buildings held for sale—at the lower of cost or market

(including projects in progress) ...... e 12,461 12,809 93,692
Property, plant and equipment—Iless accumulated depreciation

(NOtES 1, 7, B and T4) it et sttt e raea e e bt e ar s 405,301 438,795 3,047,376
Deferred income taxes (Notes 1 and 13) ... 35,507 20,228 266,970
Other assets (Notes 1, 10, 18 @Nd 19) .vveciiiiiiii it e e 52,979 50,056 398,338

¥9,340,282 ¥1,408,195 $10,077,308

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these balance sheets.

34 ]




Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 1)
Liabilities and Sharcholiders’ Equity 2002 2001 2002
Current liabilities
Short-term debt (NOteS 8 and 9) ...ooociiieecir e et ¥ 177,088 ¥ 196,111 $ 1,331,564
Current maturities of long-term debt (Notes 8, 9, 14 and 19) ...ccovcvieeievinicinniennce 42,61¢ 34,026 320,444
Trade notes and accounts PAYADIE ........oiiiiririiie et 196,069 209,526 1,474,203
Income taxes payable (NOte 13). ... e s e 6,011 11,598 45,195
Deferred income taxes and other current liabilities (Notes 1 and 13) ..c...cccocvcveeerennnn 170,564 131,634 1,282,436
Total current liabilities ... e 592,361 582,895 4,453,842
Long-term debt (Notes 8,9, 14 and 19) .. 257,180 238,349 1,933,684
Liability for pension and postretirement benefits (Notes 1 and 10) .....ooceveeennieen. 40,465 54,110 304,248
Deferred income taxes (Notes 1 and 13) ..ot 1,850 4,317 12,406
Other liabilities (Notes 1, 18 @and 19) oo e e 7,23C — 54,361
Y s oY ) A ) =1 =Y =] £ U UURURPPRN 48,253 49,267 347,767
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 17)
Shareholders’ equity (Notes 1 and 11)
Common stock:

Authorized, 3,955,000,000 shares in 2002 and 2001;

Issued and outstanding, 958,921,701 shares in 2002 and 2007 ........cccoevcvevrenr e, 67,87C 67,870 ‘ 510,301
(OF: oTj ¢ UR=TH 4 o (01 R OO P UUUP PR e 117,439 117,418 883,000
Retained earnings:

Appropriated for 1egal rESEIVE ... ..o s 20,852 20,718 156,782

W] gFTo oo} ol 1= 1 =T HNUO R PO PR PPRN 210,30¢ 300,499 1,581,270
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (Notes 1,5, 10 and 12) ... {18,393) (29,204) (138,293)
Treasury stock at cost, 4,519,972 shares in 2002

and 4,911,812 shares in 2007 (NOTE 11). i (2,934) (3,044) (22,060)
Total shareholders’ eqUItY ... e 395,143 474,257 2,571,000
¥1,340,282 ¥1,403,195 $10,077,308
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Komatsu Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Thousands of

U.S. dollars
Millions of yen (Note 1)
2002 2001 2000 2002
Revenues
Net sales (Notes 1 and B) .......ccciiivirii e ¥#1,035,891 ¥1,096,369 ¥1,055,654 $ 7,788,654
Interest and other iNCoOME ... 34,278 30,718 55,857 257,729
o <= | OO O PPPP 1,070,169 1,127,087 1,111,511 8,046,383
Costs and expenses (Notes 14 and 15)
CoSt Of SAIES .uvviiiiieiec e e 792,748 804,700 796,820 5,860,511
Selling, general and administrative ........cccoev e 256,364 263,854 241,516 1,927,549
10 (=T (=7 QO O ST UPRTPO 16,842 22,194 24,392 128,631
Impairment loss on long-lived assets (Note 1) ......cccovvneiinenn, 52,242 4,337 4,474 392,797
Special termination benefit (Note 10) ..o 30,131 — — 228,549
OtNET et e e e 28,566 11,938 24,914 214,782
TOAL e e e e saanes 1,176,893 1,107,023 1,092,116 8,848,819
Income {loss) before income taxes, minority
interests and equity in earnings........cocev v (106,724) 20,064 19,395 (802,436)
income taxes (Notes 1 and 13)
(O] (=Y o | U SRR UP P PR OPRUPPPROR 3,914 20,952 18,158 29,429
DEfEITEA. .. cii ittt s (25,844) (7,237} (8,208) (184,316)
TO Al e e (21,930) 13,715 9,950 (164,887)
income {loss) before minority interests and equity
TIY @BITUITIGS v eeeeeeeeiret e ee e sttt e eeeeeestabreesassaernrerareess e abrseeeensanens (84,794) 6,349 9,445 (637,548)
Minority interests in income (loss) of consolidated
SUBSIAIATIES . .ccvi e 3,775 179 (88) 28,384
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies.......cccccocccvevvierenns 388 385 4,038 2,992
Met INCOmME (IOSS]...ccii i ¥ (80,621) ¥ 6,913 ¥ 13,395 $ (606,173)
Yen U.S. cents
Met income (loss) per share (Notes 1 and 16):
BaSIC..eviiiiiiit e s ¥(84.46) ¥7.24 ¥13.85 (63.5)¢
DIULEA oo e e (84.46) 7.24 13.76 (63.5)
Dividends per share (Note 1), 6.00 6.00 6.00 4.5

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

36 [T ]




Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Komatsu Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen {Note 1)
2002 2001 2000 2002
Common stock
Balance, beginning of Year......ccoovviciiini e ¥ 67,870 ¥ 68,370 ¥ 68,370 $ 510,301
Purchase and retirement of common stock:

10,000,000 shares in 20071 .......oieiie et esiae e e s —_ (500) — —
Balance, nd Of YA ....c..oiviiee e ¥ 67,870 ¥ 67,870 ¥ 68,370 $ 510,301
Capital surplus
Balance, beginning of year.........coccii e ¥117,418 ¥117,366 ¥117,083 $ 882,842
Sales Of treasury StOCK .. ...iviii et 21 52 283 158
Balance, end Of YA .....vivi e e ¥117,439  ¥117,418 ¥117,366 $ 883,000
Retained earnings
Appropriated for legal reserve
Balance, beginning Of YEar......c.o v ¥ 20,718 ¥ 20,431 ¥ 20,200 $ 155,774
Transfer from unappropriated retained €arnings ........ccccccevvvniiicceiiin s 134 287 231 1,008
Balance, end Of YEar ... e ¥ 20,852 ¥ 20,718 ¥ 20,431 $ 156,782
Unappropriated retained earnings
Balance, beginning Of YEar.........cooivi i ¥300,499 ¥305,483 ¥298,122 $2,259,391
Adjustments for change of fiscal period on consolidated subsidiaries (Note 1)... (3,705) — - (27,857)
NET INCOME (OS] .1 cvveieei it ee et sere st e e sene e aeeneeeeans (80,621) 6,913 13,395 {(606,173)
Cash dividends PaI...........ccoeriiiieiiie e e e e s {5,730) (5,770) (5,803) (43,083)
Transfer to retained earnings appropriated for legal reserve...........occceveeees {134) (287) (231) (1,008)
Purchase and retirement of COMMON STOCK........ooiciiiiinie e —_ (5,840) — -
Balance, end Of YEAr ......cociiiiiie e e ¥210,302 ¥300,499 ¥305,483 $1,581,270
Accumulated other comprehensive income {foss)

Balance, beginning Of YEaI.....c.v v e ¥(29,204) ¥ (19,590) ¥ (7,436) $ (219,579)
Adjustments for change of fiscal period on consolidated subsidiaries (Note 1)... 8,447 — — 71,030
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of tax .......c.ccccoeeennen, 1,364 (9,614) (12,154) 10,256
Balance, end Of YA «c..iviviviirieci et ¥(18,393) ¥ (29,204) ¥ (19,590) $ (138,293)
Treasury stock

Balance, beginning of year............c.coccviiii i ¥ (3,044) ¥ (1,606) ¥  (696) $ (22,887)
Purchase of treasury StOCK ....c..ovciercee e (643) (1,956) (925) (4,835)
Sales Of IreaSUNY STOCK. ....coirieiiccrrir et et ces e e et e e s e aeree s 753 518 15 5,662
Balance, eNd Of YEAI .vicvi i e ¥ (2,634) ¥ (3,044) ¥ (1,606) $ (22,060)
Total shareholders’ equity............coccooeiiiiiee e ¥395,143 ¥474,257 ¥490,454 $2,971,000
Disclosure of comprehensive income (loss)

Net income (10S8) fOr the Year ..ot ¥(80,621) ¥ 6,913 ¥ 13,395 $ (606,173)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of tax ........cccccvvienen. 1,364 (9,614) (12,154) 10,256
Comprehensive income {loss) fortheyear.............c.ccoiiiiiiin e ¥(78,257) ¥ (2,701) ¥ 1241 $ (595,917)

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Komatsu Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Thousands of

U.S. dollars
Millions of yen {Note 1)
2002 2001 2000 2002
Operating activities
NEL INCOME ([OSS) - ueiiiiiicireiire it et eir e e e et ea e e e eeennes ¥(80,621) ¥ 6,913 ¥ 13,395 $(6086,173)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ... 61,581 65,106 63,690 483,015

Deferred iNCOME 1aXES ...vvi i ittt eer e e {25,844) (7,237) (8,208) (194,316)

Net loss (gain) from marketable securities and investments.........cccooennnn 8,696 (11,991) (16,993) 65,383

Gain on sale Of ProOPEMY ...ccvvi i (16,454) (3,440) (23,777) (123,714)

Loss on disposal or sale of fixed assets .......ooveviiiiiiiii e, 7,202 5,565 14,367 54,150

Impairment loss on 1ong-lived aSSets........cccvevviiiiinicni e 52,242 4,337 4,474 302,797

Provision (reversal) for pension and postretirement benefits, net................. 10,364 5,467 (10,920) 77,925
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables.........ccccvvvvei e, 62,551 3,874 (13,448) 470,308

Decrease (increase) in iINVENTONES. ..o vcvie i e e a e 20,611 (3,899) 13,683 154,970

Increase (decrease) in trade payables. ..o iicieciiin e (37,842) 8,652 4,065 (285,278)

Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable ...........ccccoviiiniie e, (3,491) 2,641 (1,075) (26,248)
0] (o1 o L= O T PP TORUP PP OPPTOTPPP 1,426 (6,012) (5,029) 10,722
Net cash provided by operating activities..........coovecce e 60,321 69,976 34,224 453,541
Investing activities
Capital eXPenditUres ...........ioii e e e enan e e e an (54,118) (60,046) (57,728) (406,202)
Proceeds from sales Of Property ... e 32,377 20,452 37,584 243,436
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities and investments..........ccccceoce. 7,866 54,621 137,278 59,143
Purchases of marketable securities and investments..............coccviiene s (4,848) (42,222) (98,218) (36,451)
Acquisition or sale of subsidiaries, net..........cc.cocccccomiin i, — (8,994) — —
Collection of loan receivables ... s 8,729 3,034 5,066 65,631
Disbursement of loan receivables ..........cc.ooo v (7,112) (1,983) (4,930) (53,474)
Decrease (increase) in time dePoSitS ... e e 173 4) (172) 1,309
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ........ccccoevvvvecciiiee e, (16,233) (85,142) 18,880 (127,316)
Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term debl.........ccooviiiiiii 47,927 29,503 19,798 360,353
Repayments on long-term debt ... (49,110) (80,123) (21,663) (369,248)
Decrease in short-term debt ... e (28,391) (7,385) (62,987) (213,466)
Repayments of capital lease oblgations ..........cccoviveeieiiiic e (5,331) 4,411) — (40,083)
Sales (repurchase) of common StOCK, Net........ocvviiiiiii i 180 (7,677) (910) 1,354
DivIAENdS DA ...cceieiiie ettt e e (5,730) (5,770) (5,803) (43,083)
Net cash used in financing activities ...t (40,455) (75,863) (61,565) (304,173)
Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents................ 881 313 1,636 6,625
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .........coccevvcvceeennienes 3,814 (40,716) (6,825) 28,677
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year......cccovcviccicii s 39,760 80,476 87,301 298,947
Adjustment for change of fiscal period on consolidated subsidiaries....... 1,818 — — 13,669
Cash and cash equivalents, end of Year ..........cccevei v ¥ 45,392 ¥ 39,760 ¥ 80,476 $ 341,293

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Komatsu Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1. Description of Business, Basis of Financial Statements and Summary

of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business

Komatsu Ltd. (“the Company”) and consolidated subsidiaries
(together “the companies”) manufacture and market primarily
various types of construction and mining equipment through-
out the world, and also engage in manufacturing and sales of
electronics including semiconductor products, and other activi-
ties. The semiconductor industry has historically been cyclical
and has experienced periodic downturns, which have had a
_material adverse effect on the semiconductor industry’s de-
mand for semiconductor products manufactured and marketed
by the Company and certain subsidiaries.

The consolidated net sales of the Company and consoclidated
subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2002, consisted of
the following:

Construction and mining equipment—70.6%, Electronics—
7.4%, Others—22.0%.

Sales are made principally under the Komatsu brand name,
and are almost entirely through sales subsidiaries and sales
distributors. These subsidiaries and distributors are responsible
for marketing and distribution and primarily sell to retail dealers
in their geographical area. Of consolidated net sales in 2002,
53.8% were generated outside Japan, with 25.3% in the
Americas, 12.4% in Europe, 12.2% in Asia (excluding Japan)
and Oceania, and 3.9% in the Middle East and Africa.

The manufacturing operations of the Company and consoli-
dated subsidiaries are conducted primarily at plants in Japan,
the United States of America, Germany, the United Kingdom,
Brazil, Italy, China and Taiwan.

Basis of Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are
stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which
the Company is incorporated and principally operates. The
translation of Japanese yen amounts into United States dollar
amounts for the year ended March 31, 2002, is included solely
for the convenience of readers outside Japan and has been
made at the rate of ¥133 to $1, the approximate rate of ex-
change prevailing at the Federal Reserve Bank of New York on
March 29, 2002. Such translation should not be construed as a
representation that Japanese yen amounts could be converted
into United States dollars at the above or any other rate.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect
certain adjustments, not recorded in the companies’ books, to
present them in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, modified for ac-
counting for stock splits (Note 11). The major adjustments in-
clude those relating to accounting for postretirement benefits,
leases, impairment losses of long-lived assets, derivatives and
accruals of certain expenses. Certain reclassifications have
been made to prior year amounts to conform with current year
presentation.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1) Consolidation and Investments in Affiliated Companies
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company and all of its majority-owned domestic and
foreign subsidiaries, except for certain immaterial subsidiaries.

During fiscal 2002, Komatsu Cummins Chile Ltda., which
was previously accounted for using the equity method, became
a consolidated subsidiary. The Company established Komatsu
(China) Ltd. and one other company, both of which are treated
as consolidated subsidiaries. In addition, KEM America Inc. was
excluded from consolidated subsidiaries due to its liquidation
in this period.

In 2000, the Company increased its ownership in certain
affiliated companies namely Komatsu Forklift Co., Ltd., and
three other companies and newly invested in a company, and
those companies became consolidated subsidiaries. In addi-
tion, the Company established a consolidated subsidiary and
an affiliated company and acquired two U.S. companies (100%
owned subsidiaries) which were accounted for by the purchase
method during fiscal 2001.

The Company sold a major part of the ownership of certain
consolidated subsidiaries namely Komatsu Soft Ltd., Komatsu
Construction Ltd. and one other consolidated subsidiary and
those companies were excluded from consolidated subsidiaries
during fiscal 2001.

At the beginning of fiscal 2002, the Company changed the
consolidated closing date for certain overseas subsidiaries
from December 31 to March 31. As a result, unappropriated

~ retained earnings decreased by ¥3,705 million (327,857 thou-

sand) and other comprehensive income (loss) increased by
¥9,447 million ($71,030 thousand).

Investments in 20% to 50%-owned affiliated companies
and certain immaterial subsidiaries not consolidated are, with
minor exceptions, accounted for by the equity method.

All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated.
The excess cost of investments in the consolidated subsidiaries
and affiliated companies over their equity in the net assets at
the dates of acquisition is generally being amortized on a
straight-line method over the estimated periods benefited,
not exceeding periods of 10 years.

However, according to the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company does not amortize
goodwiil resulting from a business combination initiated after
June 30, 2001.

(2) Transiation of Foreign Currency Accounts

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency
Transaction,” assets and liabilities are translated at the ex-
change rates in effect at each fiscal year-end, and income
and expenses are translated at the average rates of exchange
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prevailing during each fiscal year in consolidating the financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries. The resulting translation
adjustments are included in a separate component of accumu-
lated other comprehensive income (loss) in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

(3) Investment Securities

in compliance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” the Company has
categorized noncurrent marketable equity securities and debt
securities as investment securities available for sale which are
stated at fair value. Changes in fair values are included in a
separate component of accumulated other comprehensive in-
come (loss) in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

{4} Inventories

Inventories, consisting of finished products including finished
parts held for sale, work in process, and materials and sup-
plies, are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is deter-
mined by the last-in, first-out method for finished parts held for
sale and by using actual costs accumulated under a job-order-
cost system for other finished products and work in process.
Cost of materials and supplies represents average cost.

(5) Property, Plant and Equipment, and Related
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation
is computed principally using the declining-balance method at
rates based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. Effective
rates of depreciation for buildings, machinery and equipment
for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, are as
follows:

2002 2001 2000
BUHAINGS ..o 9% 8% 8%
Machinery and equipment .............ccoeeen. 23% 24% 25%

Certain leased machinery and equipment are accounted for
as capital leases in conformity with SFAS No. 13, “Accounting
for Leases.” The aggregate cost included in property, plant and
equipment and related accumulated depreciation as of March
31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2002 2001 2002
Aggregate cost........ccvee. ¥26,509 ¥19,264 $199,316
Accumulated depreciation ... 10,048 4,430 75,549

Ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to income as
incurred. Major replacements and improvements are capital-
ized. When properties are retired or otherwise disposed of, the
property and related accumulated depreciation accounts are
relieved of the applicable amounts and any differences are
included in other income or expenses.

{6) Revenue Recognition

The companies recognize revenue from product sales at the
time when title and risk of all ownership is transferred to inde-
pendently owned and operated dealers or customers, which
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typically occurs when products are received and accepted
by the customers for major products such as construction
equipment and electronics products, and upon shipment for
parts and certain other products. Lease revenues are recog-
nized in the period earned.

In December 1998, the Securities and Exchange Commission
issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No.101 (“SAB101"), “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements.” SAB101, as amended,
summarizes certain of the SEC’s views in applying generally
accepted accounting principles to revenue recognition and
provides guidance on revenue recognition issues. The compa-
nies adopted SAB101 in the year ended March 31, 2001 and
adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the
consolidated financial position or results of operation.

In fiscal 2001, Komatsu Construction Ltd., a consolidated
subsidiary, was sold by the Company to a third party engaged
in construction operation in Japan. Related income from short-
term construction contracts and long-term construction con-
tracts was generally recognized under the completed-contract
method and the percentage-of-completion method, respectively,
prior to the sale of that consolidated subsidiary.

(7) Income Taxes
In accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes,” the deferred tax provision is determined by the asset
and liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized based on temporary differences
between financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabili-
ties using enacted tax rates as of each balance-sheet date.
The companies compute and record income taxes currently
payable based on their separate determinations of taxable
income which may be different from accounting income.
Provision for income taxes is not recorded for undistributed
earnings of foreign subsidiaries and affiliated companies be-
cause the Company considers that such earnings are perma-
nently reinvested and/or would not result in material additional
taxation should they be distributed to the Company under
current circumstances.

{8 Postretirement Beneffts

The defined benefit plans are accounted for in accordance with
SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” except for
certain subsidiaries’ pension plans which in the aggregate are
not significant. Certain domestic subsidiaries also have local
severance payment plans under which accrued severance lia-
bilities are stated on the vested benefits obligation basis, which
is the amount required to be paid if all eligible employees vol-
untarily terminated their employment as of the balance-sheet date.

() Free Share Distribution

The Commercial Code of Japan (“the Code”) permits Japanese
companies, upon approval by the Board of Directors, to issue
shares, in the form of a stock split, to shareholders. The Code
requires no accounting recognition for such free share distribu-
tion (Note 11).




(10) Per Share Data
Basic net income (loss) per share has been computed by
dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding during each fiscal year, after
deducting treasury shares. Diluted net income (loss) per share
reflects the potential dilution and has been computed on the
basis that all convertible bonds were converted at the begin-
ning of the year to the extent that it is not antidilutive.
Dividends per share shown in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income have been presented on an accrual basis
and include, in each fiscal year ended March 31, dividends ap-
proved or to be approved by shareholders after such date, but
applicable to the year then ended.

(11) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments
with an original maturity of three months or less.

(12) Derivative Financial Instruments
The companies use various derivative financial instruments
to manage their interest rate and foreign exchange exposure.

Effective April 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
and SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instru-
ments and Certain Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133.” SFAS No. 133 as amended requires that
all derivatives, including derivatives embedded in other finan-
cial instruments, be measured at fair value and recognized as
either assets or liabilities on the consoclidated balance sheet.
Changes in the fair values of derivative instruments not qualify-
ing as hedges under SFAS No. 133 as amended or any inef-
fective portion of hedges are recognized in earnings in the
current period. Changes in the fair values of derivative instru-
ments used effectively as fair value hedges are recognized in
earnings, along with changes in the fair value of the hedged
item. Changes in the fair value of the effective portions of cash
flow hedges are reported in other comprehensive income (loss),
and recognized in earnings when the hedged item is recognized
in earnings.

The cumulative effect adjustment upon the adoption of
SFAS No. 133 and 138, net of the related tax effect, resulted in
immaterial impact to net income and a decrease to other com-
prehensive income {loss) of ¥670 million {($5,038 thousand).

Prior to April 1, 2001, in determing whether these instruments
qualify as a hedge, the companies used hedge criteria that include
their effectiveness to reduce risk, specific identification of the
asset or liability being hedged and the time horizon being hedged.

Interest differentials on interest rate swap contracts were
accrued as interest rate change over the contract period. Pre-
miums paid for interest rate caps were amortized over the life
of contracts and were expensed as a part of interest expense.

Gains and losses on the foreign exchange contracts were
recognized based on changes in exchange gains and losses

on such assets and liabilities being hedged. Gains and losses
on the forward exchange contracts to hedge foreign currency
commitments were deferred and included in the measurement
of the related transactions, unless it was estimated that such
deferral would lead to recognizing losses in later periods.

In addition, the companies entered into certain interest rate
swap contracts as a means of managing the Company and its
group companies’ interest rate exposures that did not meet the
hedge criteria. Accordingly, those interest rate swap contracts
were recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at their fair
value and the changes in fair value were recognized currently
in the consolidated statements of income.

{13) impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived
Assets to be Disposed of
In accordance with SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impair-
ment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be
Disposed Of,” the long-lived assets and certain identifiable
intangibles to be held and used by the companies are reviewed
for impairment based on a cash flow analysis of related opera-
tions whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be
disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or
fair value less cost to sell.

in fiscal 2001 and 2000, the Company recorded impairment
losses of ¥4,337 million and ¥4,474 miliion, respectively, on
long-lived assets related to certain production facilities, which
were temporarily idled due to the sluggish market, at its wholly
owned subsidiary, Komatsu Silicon America, Inc. in the elec-
tronics segment. Such impairment losses were calculated
using the best estimate of discounted future cash flows based
on the intention of the Company to use the facilities in its
operation.

However, due to continued negative market conditions in
fiscal 2002, management has changed its policy now to sell
or dispose of these facilities instead of holding them for future
use. In connection therewith, the Company has recorded an
impairment loss of ¥24,983 million ($187,842 thousand) for
these facilities in fiscal 2002. The impairment loss was calculated
based on an estimated fair value less cost to sell of the facilities
under current market conditions utilizing independent appraisal
of the facilities.

Additionally, the Company, also due to the decline in the
market demand, has recorded an impairment loss of ¥27,259
million ($204,955 thousand) in fiscal 2002 on production facili-
ties currently being operated by a consolidated subsidiary,
Advanced Silicon Materials LLC in the electronics segment.
Specifically, an impairment loss of ¥13,411 million ($100,835
thousand) for its Butte plant in Montana was calculated using
the best estimate of discounted future cash flows based on the
decision to continue its operation, and one of ¥13,848 million
{$104,120 thousand) for its Moses Lake plant in Washington
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was calculated using the estimate of realizable value based on
the decision to discontinue its production.

(14) Comprehensive [ncome

Comprehensive income consists of net income, changes in for-
eign currency translation adjustments, net unrealized holding
gains (losses) on securities available for sale, pension liability
adjustments and net unrealized holding gains (losses) on cer-
tain derivative financial instruments, and is included in the
consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity.

(15) Use of Estimates

The Company’s management has made a number of estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses to prepare these financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Actual results could differ from the estimates and
assumptions.

The Company has identified five areas where it believes
assumptions and estimates are particularly critical to the finan-
cial statements. These are the determination of the allowance
for doubtful receivables, impairment on long-lived assets and
goodwill, pension liabilities and expenses, fair value of financial
instruments and realization of deferred income tax assets.

(16) New Accounting Standards

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS
No. 141 requires the use of the purchase method of accounting
for business combinations and prohibits the use of the pooling
of interests method for all business combinations initiated after
June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141 also defines the types of acquired
intangible assets that are required to be recognized and reported
separately from goodwill and those acquired intangible assets
that are required to be included in goodwill. SFAS No. 142
eliminates the amortization of goodwilt but instead requires
annual impairment testing of goodwill. In addition, intangible
assets that do not have finite lives will not be amortized and
will be reviewed for impairment annually. The Company is re-
quired to adopt SFAS No. 142 for the fiscal year beginning
April 1, 2002, with the exception that certain provisions of the
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statement should be applied to goodwill and the intangible
assets acquired after June 30, 2001. In accordance with SFAS
No. 142, the Company is currently in the process of perform-
ing the transitional goodwill impairment tests and evaluating
the impact of these tests on its financial position and results
of operations.

In June 2001, FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations.” This statement addresses finan-
cial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with
the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated
asset retirement costs. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 143
for the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2003. The effect, if any,
of adopting this statement has not been determined.

In August 2001, FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” This
statement supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to
Be Disposed Of.” The statement retains the previously existing
accounting requirements related to the recognition and meas-
urement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be held and
used, however, this statement develops a single accounting
model for long-lived assets to be disposed by sale. This state-
ment also modifies the accounting and disclosure rules for
discontinued operations. The Company is required to adopt
SFAS No. 144 for the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2002. The
effect of adopting this statement is not expected to be material
to the consolidated financial position or result of operations.

In April 2002, SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB State-
ments No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement
No. 13, and Technical Corrections,” was issued. This state-
ment updates, clarifies and simplifies existing accounting
pronouncements. While the technical corrections to existing
pronouncements are not substantive in nature, in some in-
stances, they may change accounting practice. The provisions
of this statement related to SFAS No. 13 are effective for
transactions occurring after May 15, 2002. All other provisions
of this statement must be applied for financial statements
issued on or after May 15, 2002, with early application en-
couraged. The Company is currently evaluating the effects
of SFAS No. 145.



2. Suppiementai Cash Fiow Information

Additional cash flow information and noncash investing and financing activities for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,

are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2000 2002
Additional cash flow information:
INVEEIEST PAI ....oeeeeiii ettt e e n bt ettt nres ¥ 17,091 ¥ 22,385 ¥25,007 $128,504
INCOME AXES PAIT .. .. oieie ittt e e sttt et e e e paeseare e sre e e nnee e aae s 13,139 18,311 20,922 98,789
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Assets and liabilities of newly consolidated
subsidiaries in fiscal 2001 and 2000 (Note 6):

Fair value of assets aCQUINEA .......cccociiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt st ¥ — ¥(131,913) ¥ (9,021) $ —

Liabilities assumed..........cccocconiiniann. - 92,628 6,478 —

Less: Carrying amount of investment — 13,083 1,501 —

MiNority INtErest .. ..o — 17,930 97 _

Net assets exceeding the carrying value .........c...cooo i — (8,272) (945) -
Sale of subsidiaries:

Proceed from sale Of SUDSIAIAMNES. .. ccoiii ittt e rrer e e e e aee e —_ 9,526 — —_
Cash and cash equivalent balance of subsidiaries newly consolidated or sold — (10,248) 945 -
Net effect on consolidated cash flow statements - (8,994) - —
Transfer of securities to pension fund ... — 11,250 — _—
Decrease of postretirement obligation.............ooviiii i -— (11,250) — —
Capital lease obligations iNCUMEA............ccciiiiiiiiiiie e e ¥ 9,203 ¥ 19,264 ¥ — $ 69,195

3. Trade Notes and Accounts Receivable

The Company and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries
follow the practice of including the portion of installment and
lease receivables due after one year (less unearned interest) in
current assets. Receivables due after one year (less unearned
interest) amounted to ¥67,017 million ($503,887 thousand) and
¥67,243 million at March 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Lease receivables represent receivables from customers
for equipment leased by Komatsu Forklift Co., Ltd., which has
become a consolidated subsidiary in fiscal 2001. These leases
are accounted for as sales-type leases in conformity with SFAS
No. 13. Revenue from sales-type leases are recognized at the
inception of the lease.

At March 31, 2002 and 2001, lease receivables comprised
the following:

Thousands of

Mitlions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2002
Minimum lease payments
receivable..........cooeveenn., ¥16,415 ¥16,624 $123,421
Unearned income.............. (1,429) (1,536) (10,744)
Net lease receivables......... ¥14,886 ¥15,088 $1912,677

The Company adopted SFAS No. 140 in its entirety in fiscal
2002, the effect of which was not material to the accompany-
ing financial statements. The Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries sold trade notes and accounts receivable of
¥332,008 million {($2,496,301 thousand) and ¥282,431 million in
securitization transactions during fiscal 2002 and 2001, respec-
tively, and the related balance of outstanding sold notes and
accounts receivable as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 amount to

¥159,393 million ($1,198,444 thousand) and ¥127,155 million,
respectively. The receivables are removed from the accompa-
nying consolidated balance sheet and gross gain or loss is rec-
ogniZed for the difference between the proceeds received and
the net carrying value of the receivables sold.

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries retain
servicing responsibilities, however no contractual servicing
fees are received from the third parties. The investors and the
securitization trusts have no or limited recourse rights to the
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries’ assets in case of
debtors’ default. Appropriate reserves have been established
for potential losses relating to the limited recourse of the sold
receivables. Also the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries
except for a certain U.S. subsidiary, as a transferor do not
retain any interest in the receivables sold.

A certain U.S. subsidiary retains the right to receive excess
spread resulting from the difference between the yield on the
underlying receivables sold and the interest paid on the underly-
ing securities issued, of which the fair value is subject to credit
and prepayment risks on the transferred assets and amounted
to approximately ¥373 million ($2,805 thousand) and ¥539 mil-
lion under the following key economic assumptions for fiscal
2002 and 2001, respectively.

2002 2007
Weighted-average life.........cccooniiiinis 48 months 48 months
Prepayment speed over the life 1.4%
Expected credit losses over the life............... 1.5% 1.3%
Discount rate on cash flow .........cocececinnies 1.0% 6.6%
Variable returns to transferee ......................... 1.4% 5.9%
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In fiscal 2002 and 2001, the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries recognized net gains or losses from these securiti-
zations of receivables, which were not material.

The fair value of the retained interest is subject to volatility as
aresult of changes in assumptions on credit losses, prepayments

4. Inventories

and market interest rates. The impact of any such potential
volantility would not be material to the accompanying consoli-
dated financial statements as of March 31, 2002 and 2001
based on the above amounts.

At March 31, 2002 and 2001, inventories comprised the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2002
Finished products, including finished parts held for sale............ccocciiiiiieci e ¥184,364 ¥171,600 $1,385,186
WOTK 1N DIOCESS oottt ettt ettt sb bt a e e bt e be e e e b e eRa e eE b e e e h e e eatesesean s s e et e e s E et e s beaasaesmbseamneeaereesaaeas 48,763 52,162 366,839
Materials AN SUDPPHES 1o.vii ettt ettt e et e st e h e eae e ebe e sb e e et enaas 33,825 32,039 254,323
LI €= L O S PSP UR SRR UPRTRRRN ¥266,052 ¥255,801 $2,007,158

5. Investment Securities

Investment securities at March 31, 2002 and 2001, primarily
consisted of securities available for sale.

The cost, gross unrealized holding gains and losses, and fair
value for such investment securities by major security types at
March 31, 2002 and 2001, are as follows:

Millions of yen

Gross unrealized holding

Cost Gains Losses Falir value
At March 31, 2002
Investment securities available for sale:
Marketabhle et SECUIIES . ......ceeiieciieeeii et et ee et ittt e st s e eatesvaatecresss s e sttt aeastarsnnssssarsses ¥ 981 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 981
Marketable equity securities ... .. 26,094 8,345 971 33,468
Other INVESIMENT SECUNTIES ....ueeiiie ettt ettt et e a e st s e teer e s e b e esteesarsaeesctbe s e sbeanens 18,202 —_ — 16,202
¥43,277 ¥8,345 ¥971 ¥50,651
At March 31, 2001
Investment securities available for sale:
Marketable debt SECUNIES .. ..o e r e e re e s e e st s srne e e er e e e e eneas ¥ 965 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 965
Marketable equity securities .... 16,072 1,374 54,574
Cther investment securities — — 13,249

¥54,090 ¥16,072 ¥1,374 ¥68,788
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Gross unrealized holding
Cost Gains Losses Fair value
At March 31, 2002
Investment securities available for sale:
Marketable debt SECURLIES .......ccoiuii i eeee et ete et e e ebe e st e s baesate s eeeeeataens $ 7,376 $ - $ - $ 7,376
Marketable equity SECUTTIES ... ea e e eb e er e 186,195 62,745 7,301 251,639
Other INVESTMENT SEOUIMIES .. ..ciii ettt eae e s e eeb e s st e s stste e e sbaee s reessasbesaesbsbeenan 121,820 — — 121,820
$325,391 $62,745 $7,301 $380,835

Maturities of marketable debt securities at March 31, 2002
and 2001 primarily fall within five years.

Unrealized holding gains and losses are included as a com-
ponent of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
until realized.

Proceeds from the sales of marketable securities and invest-
ment securities available for sale were ¥7,866 million ($59,143

thousand), ¥54,621 million and ¥137,278 million for the vears
ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Net realized gains (losses) on the sales of marketable securi-
ties and investment securities available for sale during the years
ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, amounted to ¥(8,696)
million ($(65,383) thousand), ¥11,991 million and ¥16,993 million,
respectively. They were included in the determination of net




income. The cost of the marketable securities and investment
securities sold was computed based on the average-cost method.
In fiscal 2001, the Company contributed certain marketable
equity securities, not those of its subsidiaries and affiliated
companies, to an employee retirement benefit trust fully admin-
istrated and controlled by an independent bank trustee, with no
cash proceeds thereon. The transfer of the available-for-sale
securities has been accounted for as a sale in accordance with

SFAS No.140 (a replacement of SFAS No. 125}, and accordingly,
the recorded pension liability has been reduced by the fair mar-
ket value of the transferred securities. The fair market value of
those securities at the time of contribution was ¥11,250 million,
and the net realized gain of ¥1,955 million from the transfer of
those securities was recognized and included in interest and
other income in the accompanying consolidated statement

of income for the year ended March 31, 2001.

6. investments in and Advances to Affiliated Companies

At March 31, 2002 and 2001, investments in and advances to affiliated companies comprised the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2002 2001 2002
INVEStMENtS N CAPITAL STOCK. ... o it i e re e es s ae e e et e e e e neeenneeaeanes ¥16,775 ¥19,603 $126,128
AQVENCES.......evveeerieicereeee 6,394 4,928 48,075
Total oo . ¥23,169 ¥24,531 $174,203

In fiscal 2001, the Company acquired additional shares of
Komatsu Forklift Co., Ltd. and increased its ownership interest
from 39.2% to 50.8%. As a result, Komatsu Forklift Co., Ltd.
became a consolidated subsidiary of the Company in fiscal 2001.

Dividends received from affiliated companies were ¥1,234
million ($9,278 thousand), ¥515 million and ¥324 million during
the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Trade notes and accounts receivable from affiliated companies
at March 31, 2002 and 2001, were ¥28,804 million ($216,571
thousand) and ¥47,712 million, respectively.

Short-term loans receivable from affiliated companies at
March 31, 2002 and 2001, were ¥12,574 mitlion ($94,541 thou-
sand) and ¥16,447 million, respectively.

Trade notes and accounts payable to affiliated companies at
March 31, 2002 and 2001, were ¥4,015 million ($30,188 thou-
sand) and ¥5,819 million, respectively.

Net sales for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, included net sales to affiliated companies in the amounts
of ¥53,359 miliion ($401,195 thousand), ¥75,634 million and
¥83,001 million, respectively.

Intercompany profits (losses) have been eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements.

Summarized financial information for affiliated companies at
March 31, 2002 and 2001, and for the years ended March 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, is as follows:

Thousands of

Mitlions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2002

01014 (=T A= 1T~ £ OO T USSP PP PP UPPPP ¥129,775 ¥149,589 $ 975,752
Net property, plant and EQUIPIMENT ..ottt e e sbe e saeeeieeseaebeeanbeeseasenee 42,656 45,669 320,722
(O 1 1= =TT = O PP U OO U PSPPI 13,816 13,914 103,879
TOtAL BESOES cuviiviii e iti ettt ettt ee et e et e e e ete e et e e be e ae e et b et b e e eheeabe et e e be e ae et e b b e taeab 4 e it e ebeataeetbeatbeeneebeeeatbaannes ¥186,247 ¥209,172 $1,400,353
L1 1 g= oL o 1 (= OO TP SPRURRRTURt ¥125,982 ¥145,629 $ 947,233
Noncurrent liabilities 22,767 23,734 171,180
Shareholders’ equity 37,498 39,809 281,940
Total liabilities and shareholders’ @QUILY ..........cceiiiiiiii i ¥186,247 ¥209,172 $1,400,353
Thousands of

Miltions of yen U.S. dollars

2002 2001 2000 2002

INBE SIS 1ottt e ra e rae et e e ereeaaens ¥203,490 ¥240,256 ¥271,831 $1,530,000
NEE IMCOME .1 viitii ettt ettt ettt ete et eereebe et et e ebeete et e e e sseesses e bt e b e abe e st et b e e teetesaeensesnse s ennenns ¥ 129 ¥ 2424 ¥ 8,259 $ 970

The summarized financial information for the year ended
March 31, 2000 included the accounts of Komatsu Forklift Co.,
Ltd. and three other companies, which were newly consolidated
in fiscal 2001. The aggregated net sales of these companies for
the year ended March 31, 2000 amounted to ¥63,369 million,
and the aggregated net loss of these companies amounted to
¥323 million.

Also, the summarized financial information as of and for the
years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 included the accounts
of Komatsu Soft Ltd., which became an affiliated company from
a consolidated subsidiary at the beginning of fiscal 2001. The
aggregated net sales and net income for the year ended March
31, 2002 and 2001 amounted to ¥21,668 million ($162,817 thou-
sand) and ¥20,322 million and ¥439 million ($3,301 thousand)

and ¥367 million, respectively.
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment

The major classes of property, plant and equipment at March 31, 2002 and 2001, are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2002

= L o DS RT ¥ 78,334 ¥ 75,135 $ 588,978
Buildings 309,407 304,925 2,326,368
Machinery and equipment 610,817 602,767 4,593,361
CONSIIUCTION M PIrOGIESS .. ..veiuitieiteretii et et ettt ree e bttt e b s be e bt e et e s ee st bt e b e raee e be e enseeabe s st beenaeeseneeesbaanes 31,669 44,736 238,113
O AL ettt ettt ettt e et ke e ettt e LA ettt e b e nan £ e bt e e be e bt e b b e e atenhe e e b e e aae e baeasraaas 1,030,327 1,027,563 7,746,820
Less: accumuiated depreCiation ......... oo et (625,026) (588,768} (4,699,444}
Net property, plant and eQUIPMENT ... et rerer e e a e be e sran e e e ¥ 405,301 ¥ 438,795 $ 3,047,376

8. Pledged Assetls

At March 31, 2002, assets pledged as collateral for short-term debt, long-term debt and guarantee for debt are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.8. dollars
Trade NOtES and ACCOUNTS TECEIVADIE ....viiiii e e e b e e et a e te s e e s s aba st eratareenanttebeenseaanttabeeaenanas ¥ 759 $ 5,707
Property, plant and equipment—Iless accumulated depreCiation ..o eeciee e e 27,852 209,413
I ) € USSR ¥28,611 $215,120

The above pledged assets were classified by type of liabilities to which they relate as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen m
Liabilities appearing in the consoclidated balance sheets as:
SROM-TEIM AEDT ...ttt ettt s beb et b e et r e b seat e o1 e e b e ba s e ere b baeR b b e ebetetb et saebetr et ens ¥ 1,180 $ 8,872
Long-term debt .... 26,799 201,496
Guarantee for debt ... 632 4,752
L= 5= U OO OO OO ST OO PP PTG U OSSO PSPPSR SR ¥28,611 X $215,120
9. Short-Term and Long-Term Debt
Short-term debt primarily consisted of short-term bank loans. subsidiaries have unused committed lines of credit amounting
The weighted-average annual interest rates applicable to short- to ¥72,626 million ($546,060 thousand) with certain financial
term debt outstanding at March 31, 2002 and 2001, were 2.5% institutions at the end of fiscal 2002. Long-term debt at March
and 4.1%, respectively. The Company and certain consolidated 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of the following: " s of
ousands O
Millions of yen M
2002 2001 2002
Long-term debt with collateral (Note 8):
Banks, insurance companies and other financial institutions,
maturing serially through 2002-2014, weighted-average rate 2.9%
Government-owned banks and governmeNnt @gENGCIES .......cc.iviieriiiiie et sae et eres et siaeeee e ¥ 16,047 ¥ 14,035 $ 120,654
L0 3T OSSO O PP PP PP U PP RO UPO PR TUPTPPRON 4,834 7,196 36,348
Long-term debt without collateral:
Banks, insurance companies and other financial institutions,
maturing serially through 2002-2022, weighted-average rate 2.79% .......cooveevniiiieniieniiieen e 103,696 85,824 779,669
Eurc Medium-Term Notes with various interest rates maturing serially
ThroUGH 20022009 .........iieitcteitirerenr et et et rbe s st aeat et e e st sbeabes b et e se s e b es e s b et£ebs ekt ke et ek ek ettt eepare e 66,235 65,020 488,008
6.9% Senior Notes due 2003 (payable in U.S. dOlars) ......c.ccvevriiiiieniieinirenen e e 15,580 13,426 117,218
1.8% Convertible Unsecured Bonds dug 2004 ...........coeieiiiiiiieieieiecrrieecrtr e eeraeesere s sere s irees s seebesssesbrseee 27,447 27,447 206,368
7.0% Senior Notes due 2005 (payable in U.S. dollars).. 9,461 8,147 71,135
1.9% Unsecured Bonds dug 2008 ...........cceeciuririirie it reesee s sresrese e sbes e sre sttt enn et et ntenens 35,000 35,000 263,158
Capital lease obligations (NOTE T4).......o ittt e b s eaebe e e sbeesieaaas 20,678 15,193 155,474
(0] T O U OO OO USSR 811 1,087 6,098
TOAL ettt et et ebe e b bRt £ R e R e b b bR e e bR ae e et eae ek b e r ettt et e 299,799 272,375 2,254,128
LeSS: CUMTENT MATUNTIES ..ottt ettt e et e et e e aeee e e e et e enmeeee e srneeeaaneeeannns (42,619) (34,026) (320,444)
(ot gTo 10 o (=Y o 1 OO OO SO RP ¥257,180 ¥238,349 $1,933,684
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The conversion price per share of the 1.8% convertible un-
secured bonds at March 31, 2002, was ¥971.20, which was
subject to adjustments under certain conditions. These bonds
are redeemable anytime before maturity at the option of the
Company, at the redemption price of 102% of the initial princi-
pal as of March 31, 2002.

In 1996, the Company, Kematsu Finance America Inc. and
Komatsu Finance (Netherlands) B.V. (the “Issuers”) registered
the US$1.0 billion Euro Medium-Term Note Program (“the
Program”) on the London Stock Exchange. On April 1, 1999,
the registered amounts of the Program were increased to
US$1.2 billion. On March 31, 2000, Komatsu Australia Holdings
Pty. Ltd., formerly Komatsu Australia Pty. Ltd. was added as
an issuer under the Program. Under the Program, each of the
issuers may from time to time issue notes denominated in any
currency as may be agreed between the relevant issuers and
dealers. Komatsu Finance America Inc. issued ¥12,000 million
($90,226 thousand) during fiscal 2002, and ¥7,000 million and
US$0 million during fiscal 2001 of Euro Medium-Term Notes
with various interest rates and maturity dates. Komatsu
Finance (Netherlands) B.V. issued ¥1,707 million during fiscal ¢
2001 of Euro Medium-Term Notes with various interest rates
and maturity dates. To offset market risk exposure arising from
changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates on debts
under the Program, cross-currency interest rate swap and in-
terest rate swap contracts are utilized. The cross-currency in-
terest rate swap contracts effectively convert yen-denominated
debts and related interest into U.S. dollar and Euro obligations.

U.S. dollar interest rates are based on three month LIBOR
with borrowing spreads of LIBOR minus 0.10% to LIBOR plus

0.59% for the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, respec-
tively, depending upon the contracts. The floating interest rates
for fiscal 2002 and 2001 ranged from 1.64% to 6.00% and
6.39% to 7.34%, respectively.

The companies have also entered into interest rate and cur-
rency swap agreements for certain long-term debts (Note 18).

As is customary in Japan, substantially all bank loans are
made under agreements which provide that the banks may
require, under certain conditions, the borrower to provide
collateral, additional collateral or guarantors for its loans.

Lending banks have a right to offset cash deposited with
them against any debt or obligation that becomes due and, in
the case of default and certain other specified events, against
all other debt payable to the banks.

Under certain loan agreements, the lender may require the
borrower to submit proposals for the payment of dividends and
other appropriations of earnings for the lender’s review and ap-
proval before presentation to the shareholders. The companies
have never received such a request.

Annual maturities of long-term debt subsequent to March 31,
2002, excluding SFAS No. 133 market value adjustments of
¥7,835 million ($58,910 thousand) are as follows:

Thousands of

Year ending March 31 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
20038 .ottt raees ¥ 44,778 $ 336,677
2004 ... 96,945 728,910
2005 .t raane 48,902 367,684
61,135 459,662
17,799 133,827
38,075 286,278
Total .o ¥307,634 $2,313,038

10. Liability for Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The Company’s employees, with certain minor exceptions, are
covered by a severance payment and pension plan. The plan
provides that 70% of the employee benefits are payable as a
pension payment, commencing upon retirement at age 60
(mandatory retirement age) and that the remaining benefits are
payable as a lump-sum severance payment based on remuner-
ation, years of service and certain other factors at the time of

retirement. The plan also provides for lump-sum severance
payments, payable upon earlier termination of employment.
The Company’s funding policy is to contribute semiannually
the amounts to provide not only for benefits attributed to service
to date but also for those expected to be earned in the future.
Net periodic cost of the Company’s plan for the years ended
March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, included the following com-

ponents:
Theusands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2000 2002
Service cost—Benefits earned during the Year..............cccoccoi v e ¥ 4,537 ¥4,768 ¥ 5,122 $ 34,113
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 3,737 3,826 3,807 28,088
Expected return On Plan @SSEES ... e (1,502) (1,521) (1,294) (11,293)
Net amortization AN AEFEITAL....... ... et e et s s e e e e 2,368 1,782 2,834 17,804
Settlement loss 6,419 — — 48,263
NET PEIOAIC COST..uuiiiitiiiiiitiii ettt et bbb nrene e ¥15,65¢ ¥8,855 ¥10,569 $116,985
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The reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of the benefit obligations and the fair value of the plan assets of the

Company’s plan are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2002
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning Of YEar. ...t e ¥120,833 ¥123,429 $208,518
Service cost 4,537 ) 4,768 34,713
Interest cost 3,737 3,826 28,028
P Xe Tt g F= N Fo T TN (o = o) O PSPPSR 5,245 {(526) 39,436
BENEFITS DI .1veerieiiiiitieiie ettt b et b1ttt re et sa e e ntanne st ereen (34,771) (10,664) (261,438)
Benefit obligation, end Of YA ... e ¥ 99,581 ¥120,833 $748,729
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginninNg Of YEaI ... ettt srer st saee e ¥ 78,245 ¥ 72,435 $ 588,308
Actual return on plan assets . (6,808) (5,499) (51,188)
EMPIoyer CONtHDULION .....coiiiiii it bbb ettt rer e et smee s 5,297 16,193 39,827
BENEMES PAIA ...viiiiiii et e e e e e r et e et e et e ekt e e en e e e tereerntrete e nrreaannes (5,951) (4,884) (44,744)
Fair value of plan assets, @Nd Of YBAI ... e eer et rr e e ree e et e e e eb e e ennes ¥ 70,783 ¥ 78,245 $ 532,203
FUNGEA SEATUS 1uvivir it e e rs e e et e s e st st eae e e be e temaanssessesnnerseseeerannes ¥(28,728) ¥(42,588) $(216,526)
Unrecognized net loss... . 32,513 26,854 244,458
Unrecognized net obligation at 1,569 2,351 11,797
Unrecognized prior service cost being recognized over 15 years 3,626 4,172 27,263
NEt @MOUNT FECOGNIZEM ... .ttt ettt b st et r et e h e e br et e st e e eaee e e nenas ¥ 8,810 ¥ (9,211) ¢ 66,992
Net amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:
Liability for postretirement DENEMItS ... e e ¥(16,189) ¥(28,532) $(121,722)
Intangible assets included in other assets ...........ocvcvvevi v, 5,195 6,523 39,060
Amount included in accumulated other comprehensive income, gross of tax... . 19,804 12,798 149,654
INEt @MOUNT FECOGMIZEA ... oottt ettt b et ettt e et e she s aaeeaee e e e nbeemeneneas ¥ 8,810 ¥ (9,211) $ 66,992

Assumptions used in determining costs of the Company’s
plan and the funded status information shown above are as
follows:

2002 2001 2000
Weighted-average discount rate .................. 2.8% 3.1% 3.1%
Rate of increase in future
compensation [evels ... 2.3% 2.3% 2.1%
Expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets .........ccovvvcniincnn, 1.9% 1.9% 2.3%

As a result of the changes in the discount rate in fiscal 2002,
the benefit obligation as of March 31, 2002, was approximately
¥2,559 million ($19,241 thousand) more than it would have
been using the previous 3.1% discount rate. The effect of those
changes had an immaterial impact on the net periodic costs.

As described in Note 5, the Company contributed certain
marketable equity securities to an employee retirement benefit
trust in fiscal 2001. The securities held in this trust are qualified
as plan assets under SFAS No.87.

Certain foreign subsidiaries have various funded pension
plans, of which the plan assets and the projected benefit obli-
gations are calculated under the provisions of SFAS No. 87.
The aggregated fair value of plan assets as of March 31, 2002
and 2001, was approximately ¥14,873 million ($111,827 thou-
sand) and ¥12,634 million, respectively, and the projected
benefit obligations as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, were
approximately ¥16,015 miilion ($120,414 thousand) and
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¥10,767 million, respectively. Discount rates of 3.0% to 13.0%
and expected long-term rates of return on plan assets of 5.5%
to 10.0% were used as assumptions in determining the actuarial
value of benefit obligations for the years ended March 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000.

Certain domestic subsidiaries also have unfunded severance
payment plans and/or pension plans similar to those of the
Company for their employees. The aggregated fair value of
plan assets as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, was approximately
¥10,614 million ($79,805 thousand) and ¥10,765 million, re-
spectively, and the projected benefit obligations as of March
31, 2002 and 2001, were approximately ¥24,140 million
($181,504 thousand) and ¥28,608 million, respectively. The
amounts of net periodic costs of certain foreign and domestic
subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, were ¥5,653 million ($42,504 thousand), ¥5,476 million
and ¥2,945 million, respectively.

Directors of the Company and domestic subsidiaries are
primarily covered by unfunded retirement allowances plans.

Under the unfunded plans described in the preceding para-
graphs, the amounts required if all employees and directors
had voluntarily terminated their employment at each balance-
sheet date are fully accrued. The payments to directors are
subject to shareholders’ approval.




In November 2001, the Company announced a reorganiza-
tion plan to reduce operating costs primarily through personnel
reductions and relocation to affiliates. Voluntary early retire-
ment and relocation to affiliates programs were established
to encourage reduction of personnel, primarily the Company’s
office personnel. Such programs expired on February 28, 2002.
In connection therewith, approximately 1,300 employees agreed
to take early retirement and relocation to affiliates. During fiscal
2002, certain domestic subsidiaries also offered retirement
incentive programs. As a result of these actions, the Company
and certain subsidiaries charged the related cost of ¥23,712
million ($178,286 thousand) as special termination benefits in
the consolidated statement of income for fiscal 2002. As of
March 31, 2002, the remaining unpaid balance of accrued early
termination benefits was ¥12,437 million ($93,511 thousand).

In connection with the early retirement program, the Company
recorded a settlement loss of ¥6,419 million ($48,263 thou-
sand) in accordance with SFAS No. 88 “Employer’s Accounting
for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension

11. Shareholders’ Equity

Plans and for Termination Benefits” far the year ended March
31, 2002 and included in special termination benefit.

Total expenses of all severance payment and pension plan
premiums charged to income for the years ended March 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, were ¥42,779 million ($321,647 thousand), .
¥15,033 million and ¥14,140 million, respectively. Total expenses
of all severance payments for the year ended March 31, 2002
included the additional severance payment under the retire-
ment incentive programs.

Certain foreign subsidiaries have postretirement benefit
plans other than pensions, which are primarily not funded.

The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at March
31, 2002 and 2001, was ¥8,880 million ($66,767 thousand) and
¥6,413 million, respectively, and the accrued postretirement
benefit obligation at March 31, 2002 and 2001, was ¥4,375 mil-
lion ($32,895 thousand) and ¥3,512 million, respectively. The
amounts of net periodic postretirement benefits other than
pensions for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
were not material.

(1) Common Stock and Capital Surplus

Under the Commercial Code of Japan (“the Code”), certain
issuance of common stock, including conversions of debt
issued and exercises of warrants, are required to be credited to
the common stock account for at least 50% of the proceeds.

The Code permits, upon approval of the Board of Directors,
transfer of amounts from capital surplus to the common stock.
Pursuant to resolutions of the Board of Directors, the Company
from time to time has made free share distributions (Note 1).
Prior to October 2001, such free distributions were accounted
for by a transfer from capital surplus to common stock of the
aggregate par value of shares issued or no change in common
stock and capital surplus, amended effective on October 2001,
the Code requires no accounting recognition for such free share
distribution. Publicly owned corporations in the United States
issuing shares in similar transactions would be required to
account for them as stock dividends as of the shareholders’
record date by reducing retained earnings and increasing
appropriate capital accounts by an amount equal to the fair
value of the shares issued.

If such United States practice had been applied to the
cumulative free distributions made by the Company, capital
surplus at March 31, 2002, would have been increased by
¥103,189 million ($775,857 thousand) with a corresponding
decrease in unappropriated retained earnings. If all convertible
bonds were converted at March 31, 2002, 28,260,914 shares
of the Company’s common stock would be issuable. At March
31, 2002 and 2001, affiliated companies owned 1,581,432 and
1,575,357 shares of the Company’s common stock, respectively.

(2) Retirement of the Company’s Outstanding Shares

The Code permits a company to retire a portion of its outstand-
ing shares upon approval of the shareholders at the annual
general shareholders’ meeting or of the Board of Directors if
stipulated in the Articles of Corporation.

On May 2, 2000, the Board of Directors passed a resolution
approving the purchase and retirement of outstanding shares
of the Company up to a maximum aggregate acquisition cost
of ¥7,000 million and up to a maximum of 10,000,000 shares
before the close of the next general shareholders’ meeting in
2001 as permitted by the Company'’s Articles of Corporation.
By May 17, 2000, the Company purchased and retired
10,000,000 shares having a market value of ¥6,340 million
based on the resolution of the Board of Directors on May 2, 2000.

(3) Retained Earnings Appropriated for Legal Reserve
Effective October 1, 2001, the Code provides that an amount
at least equal to 10% of all cash payments which are made as
an appropriation of retained earnings applicable to each fiscal
period shall be appropriated as a legal reserve until the total
amount of capital surplus and legal reserve equals 25% of the
stated amount of common stock. Capital surplus and legal re-
serve may be used to eliminate or reduce a deficit by resolution
of the shareholders or may be transferred to common stock by
resolution of the Board of Directors. On condition that the total
amount of capital surplus and legal reserve remains being
equal to or exceeding 25% of common stock, they are available
for distribution and certain other purposes by the resolution of
the shareholders’ meeting.
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(4) Unappropriated Retained Earnings and Dividends

The amount of retained earnings available for dividends under
the Code is based on the amount recorded in the Company’s
general books of account maintained in accordance with gen-
erally accepted Japanese accounting practices. The adjust-
ments included in the accompanying financial statements but
not recorded in the general books of account, as explained
under “Basis of Financial Statements” in Note 1, have no effect
on the determination of retained earnings available for dividends
under the Code. In addition to the Code provision requiring an
appropriation for legal reserve as discussed above, the Code
imposes certain limitations on the amount of retained earnings
available for dividends. Retained earnings of ¥216,706 million
($1,629,368 thousand), included in the Company's general
books of account as of March 31, 2002, is not restricted by
the limitations under the Code.

The Code permits transfers, upon approval of shareholders,
of a portion of unappropriated retained earnings available for
dividends to common stock account without issuance of any
shares. Dividends are approved by the shareholders at the
meeting held subsequent to the statutory fiscal period to which
the dividends are applicable. A semiannual interim dividend
payment may be made by resolution of the Board of Directors.
Such dividends are payable to shareholders of record at the
end of each such fiscal or interim six-month period.

The Board of Directors intends to recommend to the share-
holders, at the next general meeting to be held on June 26,
2002, payment of a cash dividend totaling ¥2,863 million
($21,526 thousand) to shareholders of record on March 31,
2002. In accordance with the Code, the intention of this divi-
dend has not been reflected in the consolidated financial state-
ments as of March 31, 2002. Dividends are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity when paid.

(5) Stoclk Option Plan

On June 27, 2001, the shareholders authorized the acquisition
of 1,100,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for the
total consideration not exceeding ¥1,000 million ($7,519 thou-
sand) during the period up to the close of the following annual
general shareholders’ meeting in fiscal 2002. On June 28, 2000,
the shareholders authorized the acquisition of 1,200,000 shares

of the Company’s common stock for the total consideration
not exceeding ¥1,000 million during the period up to the close
of the following annual general shareholders’ meeting in fiscal
2001. On June 29, 1999, the shareholders authorized the ac-
quisition of 1,200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock
for the total consideration not exceeding ¥1,200 million during
the period up to the close of the following annual general
shareholders’ meeting in fiscal 2000. The Company intends to
transfer such treasury shares to directors and certain employ-
ees under an agreement granting the right for them to request
such transfers at a predetermined price. The purchase price is
set to equal an amount obtained by multiplying by 1.05 an av-
erage of the closing prices applicable to ordinary transactions
of shares of the Company on the Tokyo Stock Exchange on all
days for a month immediately preceding the month in which
the date of grant of the right falls, provided that the exercise
price shall not be less than the closing price of the shares of
the Company on the Tokyo Stock Exchange at the date of the
grant. Based on the resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting
on June 27, 2001, June 28, 2000 and June 29, 1999, the
Company acquired 1,100,000 shares, 1,200,000 shares and
1,200,000 shares of its common stock from the market for the
plan during the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The options vest 100% on each of the grant dates
and were and will be exercisable from August 1, 2002, July 1,
2001 and July 1, 2000.

SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion,” defines a fair value based method of accounting for a
stock option. This statement gives entities a choice of recog-
nizing related compensation expense by adopting the new
fair value method or to continue to measure compensation
using the intrinsic value approach under APB Opinion No. 25
(“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”), the former stan-
dard. The Company chose to use the intrinsic value measurement
prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25 and no additional compen-
sation cost was incurred in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000. Had
compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plans been
determined consistent with SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net
income (loss) and net income (loss) per share for the years ended
March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 would have been as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2000 2002
INEE INCOME (JOSS) 1. veeniiieiiii e et a ettt e b e et e as e e ebe et b e bt aneaearnsesenaenen ¥(80,756) ¥6,637 ¥13,451 $(607,188)
Yen U.S. cents
2002 2001 2000 2002
Net income (loss) per share
BSIC 1.ttt et R e e na bttt e b nae e ¥ (84.80) ¥ 6.95 ¥ 13.60 (63.6)¢
DHIULEA ...ttt ettt sttt b e Rt e aanne s et een et reeneenes {84.60) 6.95 13.51 (63.8)

1.8% Japanese yen convertible bonds, due 2004, were excluded from the diluted net income (loss) per share calculation for fiscal

2002 and 2001 because the effect would have been antidilutive.




The following table summarizes information about stock option activity for fiscal 2002 and 2001:

Weighted average

” ’ Weighted X X
Number of €exercise price average Exercise price
shares Yen U.S. dollars remaining life Low High
Outstanding at March 31, 2000.........cccoomirrtireniiierrc e 2,180,000 ¥765
Granted 1,200,000 758
Exercised (10,000) 700
Cancelled or Expired — —
Outstanding at March 31, 2007 ...t 3,370,000 ¥763
(€10 =T FOT U OO USSP 1,100,000 559 $4.20
Outstanding at March 31, 2002.......ccoiiiimeriieiirireersee e neee e 4,470,000 ¥713 $5.36 3.73 years ¥558 ¥820
[Exercisable at March 31, 2001] ..o s 2,170,000 ¥765
[Exercisable at March 31, 2002].......c..oovviiieiiiiie ettt ebe e 3,370,000 ¥763 $5.74

The fair value of these stock options was estimated using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model under the following

assumptions:
2002 2001 2000
Grant-date fair value.............c.o.c... ¥123 ($0.92) ¥230 ¥207
Expected life............... . Gyears 6Gyears 6years per a stock warrant.
Risk-free rate........... 0.64% 1.47% 1.23%
Expected volatility ............. 30.00% 32.00% 29.00%
Expected dividend yield ................ 1.15% 0.79% 0.63%

12. Other Comprehensive Income {Loss)

The Board of Directors intends to recommend to the share-
holders, at the next general meeting to be held on June 26,
2002, the free issuance of common stock warrant of the
Company up to a maximum of 950 rights, that will result in
950,000 shares by granting the right to convert 1,000 stocks

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, is as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2002 20017 2000 2002

Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Balance, beginning Of YEAI ...t e e e ¥(29,340) ¥(39,724) ¥(24,159) $(220,502)

Adjustment for change of fiscal period on consolidated subsidiaries..........cc.cccvevvveiinreeneiene, 9,444 — — 71,008

Aggregate adjustment for the year resuiting from

translation of foreign currency financial statements ... viiveci s 9,552 10,384 (15,565) 71,820

Balance, end Of YA ... ettt ¥(10,344) ¥(29,340) ¥(39,724) $ (77,774}
Net unrealized holding gains on securities available for sale:

Balance, beginning Of YEar ...t ¥ 7,249 ¥ 23,467 ¥ 25,650 $ 54,504

NEBE ABCIBASE ... vttt et a bt et nb e sae et ekt st eab e et ettt enaecene e (4,194) (16,218) (2,183) {31,534)

Balance, eNd Of Y. ...t en e ¥ 3,085 ¥ 7249 ¥ 23,467 $ 22,970
Pension liability adjustments:

Balance, beginning Of YEAI ...t et e ae e aes ¥ (7,113) ¥ (3,333) ¥ (8,927) $ (53,481)

Adjustment for change of fiscal period on consclidated subsidiaries..........cccccvivcvviicnecncne. 3 — — 22

AdJUSTMENE FOr the YEAI ...ttt (3,817) (3,780) 5,594 (28,699)

Balance, BNd Of YEaI........ooiiiiii e e e ¥(10,927) ¥ (7,113) ¥ (3,333) $ (82,158)
Net unrealized holding gains (fosses) on derivative instruments:

Balance, beginning Of YA ...t e e a e ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — $ —_

Cummulative effect of accounting Change.........ccocoooiiiiiii e (670) -— —_ (5,038)

Net decrease .......oooeveeeveiivvveenvviiivinireeeneees 493 — — 3,707

Balance, end of year ¥ (177) ¥ — ¥ — $ (1,331)
Total accumulated comprehensive income (loss)

Balance, Beginning Of YA ...t ¥(29,204) ¥(19,590) ¥ (7,436) $(219,579)

Adjustment for change of fiscal period on consolidated subsidiaries.. 9,447 — — 71,030

AJUSTMENt fOr the YEar ... e 1,364 (9,614) (12,154) 10,256

Balance, end Of YEaI. ...ttt ¥(18,393) ¥(29,204)  ¥(19,590) $(138,293)
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Tax effects allocated to each component of other comprehensive income (loss) and adjustments are as follows:

Millions of yen

Pretax Tax (expense) Net of tax
amount or benefit amount
2002:
Foreign currency translation adjUsStMENTS.........oooiii i e et ¥ 9,552 ¥ — ¥9,552
Net unrealized holding gains on securities available for sale:
Unrealized holding gains or {losses) arising during the year.........cocivvoir e (6,158) 2,571 (3,588)
Less: reclassification adjustment for (gains) or losses
iNCluded iN Nt INCOME (JOSS) .iriiiiiiii it ettt sttt seb e san e sre st ba e {1,183) 577 (803)
Net UNrealized GaINS (JOSSES) ... ciiiriiiiiiirere ettt erre st ettt b e res e e b e staaseeseestenaeessesesereaasessseennenes et resenarans (7,342) 3,148 (4,194)
Pension lability a0jUSIMENTS.........ci ittt e st et reeae st e b ettt aeere b nenren (8,551) 2,734 (3,817)
Net unrealized holding gains {losses) on derivative instruments:
Cumulative effect of accounting Change .........cociiriiiii e {1,150) 480 (670)
Changes in fair valug of derVaIVES .. .cccoi oot ee e re e st e et ee e eee e e et reennreenseneean 24 {10} 14
Net (gains) or losses reclassified INtO BAMINGS .......oooiii it s see e e 822 (343) 479
Net unrealized gains (10SS€S) ...cccccvieienciennen (304) 127 (177)
Other comprehensive income {loss) ¥(4,645) 6,000 ¥ 1,364
2001:
Foreign currency translation adjustments..... ...t ¥10,384 ¥ — ¥ 10,384
Net unrealized holding gains on securities available for sale:
Unrealized holding gains or (losses) arising during the Year..........cooviiriiiineie e e (40,774) 17,019 (28,755)
Less: reclassification adjustment for (gains) or losses
included in NEt INCOME {I0SS) ...ueiiiiiiiiii ettt e 11,374 (3,837) 7,537
Net UNrealized GaINS (IOSSES) c..u.iiiiieiiiiie ittt ettt st e e ettt e s eeats e e seresaneassbe e s ba et e e e etseesnensaeeseneas (29,400) 13,182 (16,218)
Pension Hability @OJUSTMENTS....... .t ees et s ettt ae ettt a et te et e e e nae e e e (6,488) 2,708 (3,780
Other comprehensive INCOME (IOSS) .....ivvviueiiiei ettt ettt e et e see st s smneane s nre e eeane e anbe s ¥(25,504) ¥15,890 ¥ (9,614)
2000:
Foreign currency translation adjustments...........ociiiiiiiici i ¥(15,565) ¥ — ¥(15,565)
Net unrealized holding gains on securities avaifable for sale:
Unrealized holding gains or (losses) arising during the Year...........ociiiiiiiiiierie ittt 2,585 (1,079) 1,506
Less: reclassification adjustment for (gains) or losses
iNCluded N NEE INCOME (JOSS) ...uiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt s be st s et beebeeseb e beane e e ahereebeesbeeeenes (6,848) 3,159 (3,689)
Net UNrealiZed GAINS (I0SSES) .....ii ittt ettt et rv e e b e s beeatee s b e sbeeaas e e et sbe e sseeebaete e (4,263) 2,080 (2,183)
Pension lability @djUSTMENTS...c....i.iiiii ettt st eaa et b e e ase e er e e eea e e ane s 10,555 (4,961) 5,594
Other comprehensive iNCOME (JOSS) ...ciiuiiiiieiii ittt teesabe e sre e sr e e e se e s besba b e nbessbaebeeanes ¥ (9,273) ¥(2,881) ¥(12,154)
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Pretax Tax (expense) Net of tax
amount or benefit amount
2002:
Foreign currency translation adjUSTMENTS. ..o it cre ettt ene et ae s eseeats st sbesanerra e $71,820 $ — $ 71,820
Net unrealized holding gains on securities available for sale:
Unrealized holding gains or (losses) arising during the YEar........cccoiiiiiiiicei et {48,308) 19,330 {26,978)
Less: reclassification adjustment for (gains) or losses
INCIUded IN NELINCOME (JOSS) 1..iiiiieerii ittt ee e e et r e aease s e steaaseaseesbessaanaeessesrneneears (8,895) 4,339 {4,556)
Net unrealized gains {losses) ...... ... {55,203) 23,669 (31,834)
Pension lability adjUSTMENTS.. ... e e rte e s snae st e e st e et eee e e e e s aaaee e {42,256) 20,557 {28,689)
Net unrealized holding gains (losses) on derivative instruments:
Cumulative effect of aCCOUNTING ChaNGE ....occoiiiieei et eb e e (8,647) 3,609 {5,038)
Changes in fair value of derivatives ................ 180 (75) 105
Net (gains) or losses reclassified iNt0 EarNIMGS ... .ottt 8,181 (2,579) 3,602
Net UNrealized GAINS (JOSSES) ..vviiriiiiiii ettt ee et ettt et e e e astiee e e b taeestcbeesstaaeesebeee e srnteeessnreerrnneas (2,286) 955 {1,331)
Other comMPrehensive INCOME (IOSS) .......civiieeiieiierie et e e st e e e et ertees et et ere s e st et esaa st et b e sebeare s $(34,925) $45,181 $ 10,256
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13. Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes, minority interests and equity in earnings for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, is

as follows:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
‘ 2002 2001 2000 2002
Income (loss) before income taxes:
Domestic ¥ (26,553) ¥32,703 ¥13,431 $(199,647)
. o1 C= 1l | OO ORI E T OU OO USRUPRSTOSTITO (80,171) (12,639) 5,964 (602,789)
¥(106,724) ¥20,064 ¥19,395 $(802,436)
Income taxes:
Current—
[ 100 1=3 { o OO USRI PSSP ¥ 3,196 ¥21,331 ¥11,542 $ 24,030
[aTol =1 1o o TSP PO TP PPUPSTRSON 718 (379) 6,616 5,399
3,914 20,952 18,158 29,429
Deferred—
DIOMESTIC ...vrv ittt eteett ettt ettt e et ebe e ess e s beeae st en b e b e ebense et et ensennenses s st esnenne s (15,511) (4,691) (9,403) (116,624)
FOPBIGM 1ottt e et ee ettt et a et er e ts e st e sttt en sttt (10,333) (2,546) 1,195 (77,692)
(25,844) (7,237) (8,208) (194,316)
TOAL ettt ettt e et et eas b e e ettt et et e ene st bt enaenneennes ¥ (21,930) ¥13,715 ¥ 9,950 $(164,887)
Total income taxes recognized for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were applicable to the following:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2000 2002
Income (loss) before income taxes, minority interests and equity in earnings ..........ccccooo..... ¥(21,930) ¥ 13,715 ¥ 9,950 $(164,887)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net unrealized holding gains on securities available for sale .......ccccovceeiiiiiniv e (3,148) (13,182) (2,080} (23,669)
Pension liability adjustments.........c.coooveeiiiiiiiiis e (2,734) (2,708) 4,961 (20,557}
Net unrealized hoiding gains (losses) on derivative instruments .. . (127) — — {955)
T OTAl I COME FAXES .1 vvveee ittt e e st e et a e e e et et e e ettt et e e e e tra e e e s tneneeenas ¥(27,939) ¥ (2,175) ¥12,831 $(210,068)
Temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards which gave rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2002 and 2001,
are as follows:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. doflars
2002 2001 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Unrealized interCOmMPENY PrOfit.......oviieie i sre e e e b aae s e et e e s bt e rer e e srerasnnnseeeeatsee s ¥ 22,261 ¥ 30,881 $ 167,376
Allowances provided, not yet recognized for tax.. 4,752 4,336 35,729
. ACCIUEA EXPENSES.....vveievivieeineir i eveeaeeean e 22,499 15,559 169,165
Impairment loss on long-lived assets ...... 23,844 3,235 179,278
Inventories.........ccceccrncnincnniine s 6,555 6,060 49,286
Net operating 10SS CArMYOrWAITS ....cvcviviiiiieie e b e sme et ae s re e 58,143 30,309 437,166
Research and development EXPENSES ..ottt e 4,502 8,559 33,850
Other 10,635 2,503 79,962
LSS ValIUALION AIIOWEANCE ..cocviiiiiecie ettt st e e e bt e e e ttb e e saa e s ets e e e s teeeeste s e et s beeeattn e srnsrneennean (47,847) (19,976) (359,752)
¥105,344 ¥ 81,466 $ 792,060
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized holding gains on securities available for sale.............coc ¥ 3,020 ¥ 4,604 $ 23,233
Deferral of profit from installment sales ..........c...ce...... 2,398 5,126 18,030
Deferred gains on sales of property for tax purposes.. 15,287 21,156 114,940
(05T RO SO ST OO S OSSOSO 7,409 8,308 55,707
¥ 28,184 ¥39,194 $ 211,910
The net change in the total valuation allowance for the years Income taxes in Japan applicable to the companies, im-
ended March 31, 2002 and 2001, was an increase of ¥27,871 posed by the national, prefecture and municipal governments,
million ($209,556 thousand) and a decrease of ¥575 million, in the aggregate result in a normal statutory tax rate of approxi-
respectively. mately 41.7% for the year ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and
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2000, and such a rate was used in calculating the deferred
taxes at March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

The overall effective tax rates reflected in the consolidated
statements of income (income taxes as a percentage of income
(loss) before income taxes, minority interests and equity in

earnings) for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
were (20.6)%, 68.4% and 51.3%, respectively.

The differences between the normal tax rates and the effec-
tive tax rates for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, are summarized as follows:

2002 2001 2000

NOFMALTAX FALE L..eeiieii i it eesr e e b e e e e s easaaaesaeesnsnrenee

Increase (decrease) in tax rates resulting from:

Operating losses of SUbSIdINES ....c.oovvveer e

...................................................................... @1n%  417%  41.7%

...................................................................... 13.3 23.1 6.1

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes .........cccocvvvevciennnne 1.6 6.6 111

Realization of tax benefits on operating losses of subsidiaries — (1.3) (0.4)
Income of foreign subsidiaries taxed at lower than Japanese Normal rate .......ccc.oooovvveiioiii it 3.8 (5.0) 5.9
Other, net 2.3 33 (1.3)

EffECtive taX Fate .uvvvii i

...................................................................... (20.6)%  68.4%  51.3%

Foreign subsidiaries are subject to income taxes of the
countries in which they operate.

At March 31, 2002 and 2001, no deferred tax liabilities were
recognized for undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries
and affiliated companies aggregating ¥48,028 million ($361,113
thousand) and ¥36,161 million, respectively, because the Com-
pany currently does not expect those earnings to be distributed
and/or believes that no material additional taxation would result
should they be distributed to the Company under the current
circumstances.

14. Rent Expenses

At March 31, 2002, certain subsidiaries had operating loss
carryforwards aggregating approximately ¥154,234 million
($1,159,654 thousand), which may be used as a deduction in
determining taxable income in future periods. The operating
loss carryforwards of ¥134,495 million (31,011,241 thousand)
expire through March 31, 2022, while the remainder has an
indefinite carryforward period.

The companies lease office space and equipment, employees’
housing, etc., under cancelable and noncancelable operating
lease agreements. Rent expenses under such leases amounted
to ¥16,915 million ($127,180 thousand), ¥16,128 million and
¥13,468 million, respectively, for the years ended March 31,

2002, 2001 and 2000. Certain lease contracts for equipment
that would be classified as capital lease in conformity with

SFAS No.13 were capitalized. At March 31, 2002, the future
minimum lease payments under these leases are as follows:

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

Capital Operating lease Capital Operaing lease
Year ending leases commitments Total leases commitments Total

¥ 1,665 ¥ 7,606 $ 44,669 $12,519 $ 57,188

1,447 6,273 36,286 10,880 47,166

1,230 4,807 26,895 9,248 36,143

1,051 5,795 35,669 7,902 43,571

822 2,567 13,120 6,180 19,300

2,556 5,456 21,805 19,218 41,023

Total minimum 12ase PaymMentS.........cvvreciiiin e e ¥23,733 ¥ 8,771 ¥32,504 $178,444 $65,947 $244,391
Less: amounts representing interest ..o (3,055) (22,970)
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments............cce...... ¥20,678 $155,474

15. Research and Development and Advertising Expenses

Research and development expenses charged to costs and
expenses for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
amounted to ¥44,083 million ($331,451 thousand), ¥45,282 mil-
lion and ¥42,460 million, respectively.
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Advertising expenses charged to costs and expenses as
incurred for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
amounted to ¥5,119 million ($38,489 thousand), ¥5,369 million
and ¥4,327 million, respectively.



16. Net income {Loss) per Share

A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted net income (loss) per share computations is as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2000 2002
NEL INCOME (0SS -veri ittt sttt et e et tenas e een e e eneen ¥(80,521) ¥6,913 ¥13,395 $(806,173)
Effect of dilutive securities:
1.8% Japanese yen convertible bonds, due 2004 ..., — — 300 —
Diluted NEt INCOME (JOSS) ......oeiiicrieeere ettt e et b resee et eaanes ¥(80,621) - ¥6,913 ¥13,695 $(606,173)
Number of shares
2002 2001 2000
Average common shares outstanding, less treasury StockS.......ocovveciiiiiiiinecens 954,530,062 955,250,229 967,057,543
Dilutive effect of:
1.8% Japanese yen convertible bonds, due 2004 ........ccccoovoiiviiniieiciin e —_ — 28,260,914
Diluted common shares outstanding.....cccocooiiiiieiiini e 954,530,062 955,250,229 995,318,457
Yen U.S. cents
2002 2001 2000 2002
Net income (loss) per share:
BaSIC ...t ettt e et h et r e ¥(84.46) ¥7.24 ¥13.85 (63.5)¢
DIIULEA ..o e e et et et e e e (84.46) 7.24 13.76 (63.5)

1.8% Japanese yen convertible bonds, due 2004, were excluded from the net diluted income (loss) per share caiculation for fiscal

2002 and 2001 because the effect would have been antidilutive.

17. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

At March 31, 2002, the companies were contingently liable for
discounted and transferred receivables on a recourse basis with
the financial institutions of ¥16,764 million ($126,045 thousand)
(Note 3} and also as guarantors of indebtedness of others,
including letters of awareness and keep-well agreements
aggregating ¥27,247 million ($204,865 thousand), including
¥1,948 million ($14,647 thousand) relating to affiliated compa-
nies. With regard to sale of a subsidiary, the Company guaran-
tees to the purchaser to pay up to ¥4,258 million ($32,015
thousand) as of March 31, 2002 relating to the credit risk of
subsidiary’s outstanding receivables at the time of the sale.
Management of the Company believes that losses from those
contingent liabilities, if any, would not have a material effect on
the consolidated financial statements.

18. Derivative Financial Instruments

Commitments for capital expenditures outstanding at
March 31, 2002, aggregated approximately ¥2,900 million
($21,805 thousand).

The companies are involved in certain legal actions and
claims arising in the ordinary course of their business. It is the
opinion of management and legal counsel that such litigation
and claims will be resolved without material effect on the
companies’ financial position.

The companies have business activities with customers,
dealers and associates around the world and their trade receiv-
ables from and guarantees to such parties are well diversified
to minimize concentrations of credit risks. Management does
not anticipate incurring losses on their trade receivables in
excess of established allowances.

Risk Management Policy

The companies are exposed to market risk primarily from
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates
with respect to debt obligations, international operations and
foreign currency denominated credits and debts. In order to
manage these risks that arise in the normal course of business,
the companies enter into various derivative transactions for
hedging pursuant to their policies and procedures. The com-
panies do not enter into derivative financial transactions for
trading or speculative purposes.

The companies have entered into interest rate swap and cap
agreements, partly concurrent with currency swap agreements
for the purpose of managing the risk resulting from changes in
cash flow or fair value that arise in their interest rate and foreign
currency exposure with respect to certain short-term and long-
term debts and investment securities.

The companies operate internationally which expose the
companies to the foreign exchange risk against existing assets
and liabilities and transactions denominated in foreign curren-
cies (principally the U.S. dollar and the euro). in order to reduce
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these risks, the companies execute forward exchange contracts
and option contracts (purchased) based on their projected
cash flow in foreign currencies.

The companies are exposed to credit-related losses in the
event of nonperformance by counterparties to derivative finan-
cial instruments, but they do not expect any counterparties to
fail to meet their obligations because of the high credit rating
of the counterparties.

Fair Yalue Hedges

The companies use derivative financial instruments designated
as fair value hedges to manage primarily interest rate and for-
eign exchange risks associated with debt obligations. Principally
cross-currency swap, interest rate swap and foreign exchange
contracts are used to hedge such risk for debt obligations.
Changes in fair value of the hedged debt obligations and deriv-
ative instruments designated as fair value hedge are offset and
recognized in other expense. For the year ended March 31,
2002, hedge ineffectiveness resulting from fair value hedging
activities was not material to the companies’ result of opera-
tions. During the same period, no fair value hedges were
discontinued.

Cash Flow Hedges

The companies use derivative financial instruments designated
as cash flow hedges to manage the companies’ foreign ex-
change risks associated with forecasted transactions and the
companies’ interest risks associated with debt obligations. For
transactions denominated in foreign currencies, the companies
typically hedges forecasted and firm commitment exposures to
the variability in cash flow basically up to one year. For the vari-
able rate debt obligations, the companies enter into interest
rate swap contracts to manage the changes in cash flows. The
companies record the changes in fair value of derivative instru-
ments designated as cash flow hedges in other comprehensive
income (loss). These amounts are reclassified into earnings
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through interest and other income or expense when the
hedged items impact earnings. Approximately ¥81 million
($609 thousand) of existing gains included in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) at March 31, 2002 will be
reclassified into earnings within twelve months from that date.
No cash flow hedges were discontinued during the year ended
March 31, 2002 as a result of anticipated transactions that are
no longer probable of occurring.

Undesignated Derivative Instruments
The companies have entered into interest rate swap contracts
not designated as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133 as
a means of managing the Company and its group companies’
interest rate exposures for short-term and long-term debts.
Forward contracts and option contract (purchased) not desig-
nated as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133 are also
used to hedge certain foreign currency exposures. The changes
in fair value of such instruments are recognized currently
in earnings.

Notional principal amounts of derivative financial instruments
outstanding at March 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 T 2002
Forwards and options:
Sale of foreign currencies... ¥ 28,870 ¥ 33,074 $ 217,068
Purchase of foreign
CUITENCIES ..\vveeviieninnnens 27,328 28,528 205,474
Option contracts (purchased) .. 3,171 3,395 23,842
Interest swap, currency
swap and interest rate
cap agreement..............oeeee 308,477 295,448 2,319,376

Net foreign currency transaction gains of ¥1,109 million
($8,338 thousand), gains of ¥2,908 million, and losses of
¥4,323 million for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively, were included in the determination of net
income (loss).




19. The Fair Vaiue of Financial instruments

(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents, Time Deposits, Trade Notes
and Accounts Receivables, Other Current Assets, Short-
Term Debt, Trade Notes and Accounts Payables, and
Other Current Liabilities

The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the

short maturity of these instruments.

(2) Investment Securities
The fair values of investment securities available for sale are
based on quoted market prices.

(3} Installment Receivables

The fair values of installment receivables are based on the
present value of future cash flows through maturity, discounted
using estimated current interest rates. The fair values computed
on such a basis approximate the carrying amounts (Note 3).

(4) Long-Term Debt

The fair values of each of the long-term debts are based on the
quoted price in the most active market or the present value of
future cash flows associated with each instrument discounted
using the current borrowing rate for similar debt of comparable
maturity.

(5) Derivative Financial instrumenis
The fair values of derivative financial instruments, consisting
principally of foreign currency contracts and interest swap
agreements, are estimated by obtaining quotes from brokers.
The carrying amounts and the estimated fair values of the
financial instruments, including financial instruments not quali-
fying as hedge, as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, are summa-
rized as follows:

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2002 2001 2002
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
amount fair value amount fair value amount fair value
INVEStMENt SECUMLIES ..vivii i ea e ¥ 50,651 ¥ 50,651 ¥ 68,788 ¥ 68,788 $ 380,835 $ 380,835
Long-term debt, including current portion ........cc..c..cooieeeii i, 299,799 296,143 272,375 272,645 2,254,128 2,226,639
Derivatives:
Foreign exchange contracts
ASSEES ..o 983 983 574 1,544 7,391 7,391
LiabiltiEs ..o 657 657 549 1,912 4,940 4,940
Interest rate swap, cross currency swap and cap agreements
ASSEES (ot 786 786 312 4,312 5,910 5,910
Ligbilities ..o 10,872 10,872 1,050 4,876 81,744 81,744
Limitations involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based
on relevant market information and information about the finan-
cial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and

20. Business Segment information

therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could affect the estimates.

Under SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information,” operating segments are
defined as components of an enterprise about which separate
financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by
the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allo-
cate resources and in assessing performance. The operating

segments are managed separately because each operating
segment represents a strategic business unit that offers
different products and services.

The companies operate on a worldwide basis principally
with three operating segments: 1) Construction and mining
equipment, 2) Electronics, 3) Others.
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The following tables present certain information regarding the companies’ operating segments and geographic information at March

31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, and for the years then ended:

Operating segments:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2002 2001 2000 2002
Net sales:
Construction and mining equipment—
Customers....... ¥ 731,340 ¥ 718,147 ¥ 747,647 $ 5,498,797
Intersegment.... 7,018 7,400 12,485 52,767
Total............. 738,358 725,547 760,132 5,551,564
Electronics—
CUSEOIMIBIS .. cieee ettt ees e es e bt eeaa e et e e e st e et e ee bt e e rbaeate s ateaesns 76,769 117,745 90,335 577,210
Intersegment.... 236 492 80 1,775
B e - | SO PO PRSP P RO PU 77,005 118,237 90,415 578,985
Others—
CUSLOIMEIS L..uiiiiee ettt eee st st e e s e e b e e be e e b b e s eba et e e e et e et e st bt e e st e eanessbaenean 227,782 260,477 217,672 1,712,647
INEEISEOMENT ... it e 37,191 49,221 59,982 279,631
B ) & | DO USRI 264,973 309,698 277,654 1,992,278
[T aTa T 11 Te) o WSO O T OSSPSR (44,445) (57,113) (72,547) (334,173)
(O] e] 4=To] [ o= Z=Y o ST U RU PR PPRt ¥1,035,821 ¥1,096,369 ¥1,055,654 $ 7,788,654
Operating income {loss):
Construction and mining equUIPMENt ... ¥ 881 ¥ 22,203 ¥ 28,489 $ 6,624
=3t o1 (goTa TTor SO OO P TP TOPTORTOUUUPPIURE {14,925) 2,887 (9,839) {(112,218)
L0 1= S U OV PPP PPNt 4,976 6,450 1,171 37,414
TOUAL ettt bt et e b e h e ekt e e a e eateereatbaaans (9,068) 31,540 19,821 (68,180)
Corporate expenses and elimination.. {4,153) (8,725) (2,503) {31,228)
Consolidated operating income...... {13,221) 27,815 17,318 {99,408)
Interest and other income ........... 34,278 30,718 55,857 257,729
INEEIEST @XPENSE .eeiiiiiie e e 16,842 22,194 24,392 126,631
OENEE @XPENSES 1ooivii i ieee it it e e vt s s re e s ses e e ee e e e e te e et sbe e e sanee e e srtbeesasee e tes 110,239 16,275 29,388 834,128
Consolidated income (loss) before INCOME taxXes ...o.cvevvervveveciiierieeeee e ¥ (108,724) ¥ 20,064 ¥ 19,385 $ (802,436)
ldentifiable assets:
Construction and mining equipment ¥ 879,732 ¥ 868,611 ¥ 672,031 $ 6,614,526
Electronics.......ovveee e 181,746 240,592 231,317 1,366,511
ONBIS . ettt e srene e 231,287 254,960 231,989 1,739,000
Corporate assets and elimination...........ccooovieiiiii e 47,517 39,032 239,943 357,271
CONSONAALE ....veiieeii e ettt e e b e et b ettt bt a b e e te e baeareeens 1,340,282 ¥1,403,195 ¥1,375,280 $10,077,308
Depreciation and amortization:
Construction and miniNg QUIPMENt ......cooiiiiiriie et ¥ 36,442 ¥ 32,317 ¥ 32,166 $ 274,000
Electronics 17,235 20,210 20,860 129,587
BB S .ot h e e et b et e et ae e sbeara e 6,217 11,388 8,474 48,744
CONSOIAAIEA ...vii et bbb ettt et beaaa e ¥ 59,804 ¥ 63,915 ¥ 61,500 $ 450,331
Capital expenditures:
Construction and mining @QUIPMENT ..ot s se s ¥ 46,354 ¥ 47,380 ¥ 37,989 $ 348,527
B OO rONICS . ettt e nnas 18,827 16,476 13,089 142,308
(01201 ¢TSRSt 9,187 15,454 6,650 69,075
CONSONABLET ..ottt ¥ 74,468 ¥ 79,310 ¥ 57,728 $ 559,910

Transfers between segments are made at estimated arm’s-
tength prices. Operating income (loss) represents net sales less
cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses.
Identifiable assets are those assets used in the operations of
each segment. Unallocated corporate assets consist primarily
of cash and cash equivalents and marketable investment secu-
rities maintained for general corporate purposes.
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Other expenses include impairment foss on long-lived assets
in the electronics segment of ¥52,242 million ($392,797 thou-
sand), ¥4,337 million and ¥4,474 million for the years ended
March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.




Geographic information:

Net sales recognized by sales destination for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2002 2001 2000 2002
JBPDAN .ottt ettt e et ettt aean et et s en b e b aarseasersebebrtns ¥ 478,187 ¥ 586,865 ¥ 553,822 $3,595,391
Americas .. 262,341 241,091 242,609 1,972,488
W] o] o = OO SOOI UUTRU T UTTSTPSR 128,029 126,479 123,633 962,624
Asia (excluding Japan) and OCEANIA........ccceceicv ittt e aenens 126,363 117,136 99,558 950,098
Middle East @and AffICa ......cciiiiiiireiireserr e et aab e e 40,971 24,798 36,032 308,052
Consolidated NEt SAIES .....ccccviivii e ¥1,035,891 ¥1,096,369 ¥1,055,654 $7,788,654

Net sales recognized by geographic origin and long-lived assets at March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, and for the years then ended

are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2002 2001 2000 2002

Net sales:

¥ 564,537 ¥ 662,025 ¥ 615,580 $4,244 639
266,701 241,745 245,002 2,005,271
108,191 112,257 114,742 813,466
96,462 80,342 80,330 725,278
¥1,035,891 ¥1,096,368 ¥1,055,654 $7,788,654
¥ 309,315 ¥ 320,194 ¥ 277,693 $2,325,677
115,812 139,132 134,981 870,767
Europe 13,813 9,664 9,032 104,609
Other .... 31,701 32,670 26,087 238,353
¥ 470,741 ¥ 501,660 ¥ 447,803 $3,539,406

No individual country within Europe or other areas had a material impact on net sales or long-lived assets. There were no sales to a

single major external customer for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.
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The following information shows net sales and operating discloses this information as supplemental information in light
income (loss) recognized by geographic origin for the years of the disclosure requirements of the Japanese Securities and
ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. In addition to the Exchange Law, which a Japanese public company is subject to:

disclosure requirements under SFAS No. 131, the Company ™ s of
ousanas

Millions of yen m
2002 2001 2000 2002
Net sales:
Japan—
CUSTOMBIS ..ot e e e s e e et et eeeaee e s s ar s e emstsa e s s beaesataaeesrbaneses ¥ 564,537 ¥ 662,025 ¥ 615,580 $ 4,244,639
IMEISEOMENT. .o e et e 125,525 142,645 143,569 243,797
LI LU P PR PSPPSR 690,062 804,670 759,149 5,188,436
Americas—
(0101 (o] 1= ¢TSS PR 267,111 242,182 245,367 2,008,353
INtEISEYMENT.....oiii i e 17,070 10,194 8,624 128,346
LI o)=L O PP P USSP PPPPR 284,181 252,376 258,991 2,136,699
Europe—
CUSEOMIEIS (et taeesveebe e e e s s e e ee et eres et e ae st bbbt aae s et ntntaarnenss 108,191 112,257 114,742 813,466
INEErSEGMENT ...t e 9,682 13,551 14,665 72,797
LI 2= U UPUPP 117,873 125,808 129,407 886,263
Others—
[O10E=3 1] 01T ¢TSS 26,052 79,905 79,965 722,198
(g1l SY=T o g o= o | O P T PTTSSOY 6,869 3,652 4,750 51,646
102,921 83,557 84,715 773,842
{159,146) {170,042) (171,608) {1,126,586)
¥1,035,891  ¥1,006,369  ¥1,055,654 $ 7,788,654
¥ 130 ¥ 29,253 ¥ 955 $ 977
{10,562) (2,302) 12,354 (79,413)
W CoT o= S U U U OO P PRSP PSUOPUPUOTRPTN 3,077 5,945 4,284 23,135
Others (354) 364 2,202 (2,662)
Corporate and elimination ............ccei i s (8,512) (5,445) (2,477) (41,443)
[@7e] gt Te][Ta b= 1 (- To O S O PTPUP ¥ (13,221) ¥ 27,815 ¥ 17,318 $ (99,408)
Identifiable assets:
=T o= Lo T PR UOUII ¥ 948,294 ¥1,030,872 ¥ 941,282 $ 7,130,030
Americas.... 354,438 343,967 289,123 2,664,947
Europe ....... 82,102 83,389 73,560 617,308
L0 1= -SSR TR 108,626 98,057 83,760 801,699
Corporate assets and elimination...........coeeee i {151,178) (153,090) (12,445) {1,138,676)
CONSOHAALEA ... e e 1,340,282 ¥1,403,195 ¥1,375,280 $10,077,308
Qverseas sales:
Americas.... ¥ 262,341 ¥ 241,091 ¥ 242,609 $ 1,072,489
Europe........ 128,029 126,479 123,633 962,624
(04 =T SO UPUUSUR SO 167,334 141,934 135,590 1,258,150
LI U OSSR ¥ 557,704 ¥ 509,504 ¥ 501,832 $ 4,193,263
Transfers between segments are made at estimated arm’s- each segment. Unallocated corporate assets consist primarily
length prices. Operating income (loss) represents net sales less of cash and cash equivalents and marketable investment secu-
cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses. rities maintained for general corporate purposes.

Identifiable assets are those assets used in the operations of
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21. Subsequent Event

On May 10, 2002, the Company and its subsidiaries Komatsu
Forklift Co., Ltd. and Komatsu Zenoah Co. have reached an
agreement on stock for stock exchanges (hefeinafter referred
to as “"the Exchanges™). The exchange ratios were determined
as a result of discussions by the concerned companies with
reference to the exchange ratios calculated by independent
third-party organizations. At present, the Company holds
approximately 52% and 54% of the shares of Komatsu
Forklift Co., Ltd. and Komatsu Zenoah Co. respectively and
expects to issue 39,822,359 shares of common stock upon
the Exchanges. The Company will conduct the Exchanges by
a simplified procedure as specified in Article 358 of the Com-
mercial Code of Japan, which does not require the approval
at its shareholders’ meeting. The Exchanges will be carried

out in October 2002 and Komatsu Forklift Co., Ltd. and Komatsu
Zenoah Co. will become wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company.

Since May 2000, the Company has built business coopera-
tion on a global basis with Linde AG of Germany in the areas
of production and sales of forklift trucks. in May 2002, in order
to construct a closer cooperative relationship, the Company
and Linde AG have reached a basic agreement under which
two companies will transform Komatsu Forklift Co., Ltd. into
their joint venture company. The Company and Linde AG ex-
pect to conclude the joint-venture agreement by the end of
November 2002 and establish this joint-venture company
subject to the approval of the Anti-Trust Authorities.
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Report of Independent Public Accountants

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Komatsu Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of KOMATSU LTD. (a Japanese corporation) and consolidated sub-
sidiaries as of March 31, 2002 and March 31, 2001 and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2002, expressed in yen. These financial statements are the responsi-
bility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial state-
ments. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Komatsu Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (see Note 1).

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company and its subsidiaries changed the method of accounting
for derivative instruments and hedging activities effective April 1, 2001.

Also, in our opinion, the amounts translated into U.S. dollars in the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been com-
puted on the basis set forth in Note 1.

Loion Aoolovn

Tokyo, Japan
May 10, 2002




Directors and Officers

{As of June 26, 2002)

Board of Directors Executive Officers

Satoru Anzaki Naomi Anesaki
Chairman of the Board Senior Executive Officer

Masahiro Sakane* Supervising Compliance, General Affairs,
President Defense Systems, and Environment &

Safety Management

Teruo Nakahara
Senior Executive Officer
President, Development Division

Toshitaka Hagiwara*
Executive Vice President
Assistant to President, Supervising
Corporate Administration, Related

Businesses, and Management Structure Kota Hoshino
Reform Executive Officer
Kazuhiro Aoyagi* P{e§iQent, Engines & Hydraulics Business
Executive Managing Director Division
President, Construction & Mining Susumu Isoda
Equipment Marketing Division Executive Officer
Kunio Noji* President, Procurement Division, and Vice

Managing Director President, Production Division

President, Production Division Teruo Nagayasu
Supervising e-KOMATSU Executive Officer
Kunihiko Komiyama* Vice President, Construction & Mining

Equipment Marketing Division, and

Managing Director
ghs General Manager, Customer Support

General Manager, Corporate Planning

Supervising Engines & Hydraulics Masahiro Yoneyama
Business Executive Officer

Tetsuya Katada Deputy General Manager, Corporate
Director Planning, and Advisor, e-KOMATSU
Counselor Division

Toshio Morikawa Shigeki Fujimori
Director Executive Officer
Advisor, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking President, Defense Systems Division
Corporation Munenori Nakao

Executive Officer
Vice President, Construction & Mining
Equipment Marketing Division, and General
Statutory Auditors Manager, Recycling & Systems Development
i Supervising Corporate Communications
Norimichi Kitagawa .
Standing Auditor Yasuo Suzuki
Executive Officer
President, Industrial Machinery Division

Yuji Watanabe
Executive Officer
Deputy General Manager, Corporate
Planning

Masafumi Kanemoto
Standing Auditor

Masahiro Yoshiike
Auditor
President, The Taiyo Mutual Life
Insurance Corporation e .
P Kenji Kinoshita

Takahgru Dohi Executive Officer
Auditor CFO

Makoto Nakamura
Executive Officer
* Also serves as Executive Officer President, e-KOMATSU Division

Hiroshi Suzuki
Executive Officer
General Manager, Underground
Machinery Business, Construction &
Mining Equipment Marketing Division

Mamoru Hironaka
Executive Officer
Vice President, Development Division

Masao Fuchigami
Executive Officer
President, Research Division

Masayuki Sato
Executive Officer
Oyama Plant Manager, Engines &
Hydraulics Business Division

Taizo Kayata
Executive Officer
President, Overseas Marketing,
Construction & Mining Equipment
Marketing Division

Yasuo Kimura
Executive Officer
President, Japanese Marketing, and
General Manager, CE Business Solution,
Construction & Mining Equipment
Marketing Division

Global Officers

David W. Grzelak
Chairman & CEQ, Komatsu America Corp.

Peter J. Howe

Managing Director, Komatsu UK Ltd.
Junro Kawanabe

President, Komatsu do Brasil Ltda.
Michael W. Kerschen

President & COO

Advanced Silicon Materials LLC
Yoichi Kobayashi

President, Komatsu Latin-America Corp.
Yoshinori Komamura

Chairman & Managing Director

Komatsu Europe International N.V.
Gerhard Lehnen

President, Komatsu Hanomag AG
John H. Matlock

President & CEO

Komatsu Silicon America, Inc.
Kenichi Nakamura

President & COO, Komatsu America Corp.

Teruaki Noda
CFO, Komatsu America Corp.

lan Olivieri
Managing Director
Komatsu Australia Pty. Ltd.

Yoshitaka Omura
President, Komatsu Asia & Pacific Pte Ltd

Toshiji Onuma
President
Komatsu Mexicana S.A. de C.V.

Frank Plancke

Managing Director

Komatsu Europe Coordination Center N.V.
Shuji Sugi

President, North American Development

Division, Komatsu America Corp.
Enrico Tonetti

Managing Director

Komatsu Utility Europe S.p.A.
Hideo Ueda

Chairman & CEO

Advanced Silicon Materials LLC

Norbert H.H. Walther
President
Komatsu Mining Germany GmbH
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Komatsu Group Investment Holdings

(As of March 31, 2002)

Subscribed
capital
Subscribed in millions

capital Participation (except for*  Participation
Company in millions {%) Company in thousands} (%)
Komatsu Ltd. ¥67,870 —_ Komatsu House Co., Ltd. ¥1,436 (1.8) 88.5

Komatsu Building Co., Ltd. ¥30 100.0

Consolidated Subsidiaries Komatsu Industries Corporation ¥990 100.0
Komatsu Zenoah Co. ¥5,099 557 Komatsu Machinery Corporation ¥600 100.0
Komatsu Hokkaido Ltd. ¥487 100.0 Komatsu Artec Ltd. Y90 100.0
Komatsu Aomori Ltd. ¥30 981 Komatsu General Services Lid. ¥2,660 100.0
Komatsu Miyagi Ltd. *80 100.0 Komatsu Business Support Ltd. ¥20 100.0
Komatsu Niigata Ltd. ¥80 70.0 Komatsu Engineering Corp. ¥140 100.0
Komatsu Tokyo Ltd. ¥837 100.0 Komatsu Information Providing Ltd. ¥80 100.0
Komatsu Tokai Ltd. ¥50 100.0 Komatsu Logistics Corp. ¥1,080 (0.8) 97.1
Komatsu Gifu Ltd. ¥45 700 Komatsu America Corp. (KAC) US$655 100.0
Komatsu Kinki Ltd. ¥1,700 100.0 Komatsu America International Company (KA) — (100.0) 100.0
Komatsu Kyoto Co., Ltd. ¥50 (100.0) 100.0 Komatsu Mining Systems, Inc. (KMS) US$65  (100.0) 100.0
Komatsu Minami Kinki Ltd. ¥50 {100.0)100.0 Komatsu Latin-America Corp. (KLC) US$18 (100.0) 100.0
Komatsu Nara Ltd. ¥20 (100.0) 1000 Komatsu Reman North America, Inc. (KRNA) US$9  (100.0) 100.0
Komatsu Hyogo Ltd. ¥613 897 Modular Mining Systems, Inc. (MMS) US$16" (66.1) 66.1
Komatsu Kagawa Ltd. ¥300 100.0 Hensley Industries, Inc. US$14  (100.0) 100.0
Komatsu Okayama Ltd. ¥90 100.0 Komatsu Cummins Chile Ltda. US$13  (81.8) 81.
Komatsu Hiroshima Ltd. ¥60 100.0 Komatsu do Brasil Ltda. (KDB) BRL55 (100.0) 100.0
Komatsu Yamaguchi Ltd. ¥400 100.0 Komatsu Mexicana S.A.de C.V. (KMX) MXN15  (31.5) 100.0
Komatsu Oita Ltd. ¥54  (25.9)100.0 Komatsu Europe International N.V. (KEISA) Eurod5 100.0
Komatsu Nishi Nihon Ltd. ¥60 100.0 Komatsu Mining Germany GmbH (KMG) DM10 100.0
Komatsu Kagoshima Ltd. L ¥341 91.9 Komatsu UK Ltd. (KUK) £23  (50.0)100.0
Komatsu Okinawa Ltd. ¥50 100.0 Komatsu Hanomag AG (KOHAG) Euro10  (49.3) 98.4
Komatsu Parts Ltd. ¥175  (6.9)100.0 Komatsu Utility Europe S.p.A. (KUE) Euwos  (90.0) 100.0
Komatsu Used Equipment Corp. ¥50 (17.8) 100.0 Komatsu France S.A. (KFSA) Eurod4  (100.0) 100.0
Komatsu Trading, Inc. ¥30 100.0 Komatsu Europe Coordination Center
Komatsu Diesel Co., Ltd. ¥50 100.0 V. (KECC) Euro1,250" (100.0) 100.0
Komatsu Safety Training Center Ltd. ¥10 100.0 Komatsu Southern Africa (Pty) Ltd. (KSAf) ZAR124  (30.0) 80.0
Komatsu Castex Ltd. ¥4,979 100.0 Komatsu Asia & Pacific Pte. Ltd. (KAP) S$12 100.0
Komatsu Metal Ltd. ¥300 100.0 PT Komatsu Indonesia Thk (KI) Rp192,780 55.1
Komatsu Electronic Metals Co., Ltd. (KEM) ¥11,636 (1.3) 63.2 Bangkok Komatsu Co., Ltd. (BKC) BHT620 (15.9) 74.8
Komatsu Semiconductors Corporation ¥100 100.0 Komatsu (Changzhou) Construction
Komatsu Electronics, Inc. ¥390 100.0 Machinery Gorp. (KGCM) us$21 (100 8.0
Komatsu Forklift Co., Ltd. ¥11,411 519 Komatsu (Changzhou) Foundry Corp. (KCF) Us$21  (33.3) 95.0
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Subscribed

capital

in millions

(except for*  Participation
Company in thousands) (%)
Komatsu (China) Ltd. US$34 100.0
Komatsu (Shanghai) Ltd. (KSL) Us$13 (9.8) 100.0
Komatsu Australia Holdings Pty. Ltd. (KAH) A$3 100.0
Komatsu Australia Pty. Ltd. (KAL) A$21  (60.0) 60.0
Komatsu Silicon America, Inc. (KSA) US$535 100.0
Advanced Silicon Materials LLC (ASiMI) — {100.0) 100.0
Komatsu Silicon Europe N.V. (KSE) Euro250” (100.0) 100.0
Formosa Komatsu Silicon Corporation (FKS) NT$4,250  (50.9) 50.9
Komatsu America Industries LLC (KAIC) — (100.0y100.0
Komatsu Finance America inc. (KFA) US$140 (100.0) 100.0
Komatsu Finance (Netherlands) B.V. (KFN) Euro138* 100.0

Affiliated Companies Accounted for by the Equity Method

Komatsu Doutou Ltd. ¥90 50.0
Komatsu Kita Hokkaido Ltd. ¥100 40.0
Komatsu Douou Ltd. ¥50 50.0
Komatsu Akita Lid. ¥50 37.6
Komatsu Yamagata Ltd. ¥45 333
Komatsu Tochigi Ltd. ¥100 40.0
Komatsu Jobu Ltd. ¥635 40.0
Komatsu Ibaraki Co., Ltd. ¥74 25.0
Komatsu Toyama Ltd. ¥74 20.0
Komatsu Ishikawa Ltd. ¥165 20.0
Komatsu Mie Ltd. ¥48 25.0
Komatsu Shiga Ltd. ¥42 20.0
Komatsu Ehime Ltd. ¥60 50.0
Komatsu Kochi Ltd. ¥85 37.5
Komatsu Tokushima Ltd. ¥30 40.0
Komatsu Sanin Ltd. ¥30 25.0
Komatsu Miyazaki Ltd. ¥32 37.5
Tsuzuki Seisakusho Ltd. ¥140 20.0
Komatsu Cummins Engine Co., Ltd. ¥1,400 50.0
Industrial Power Alliance, Ltd. ¥500 50.0
Komatsu Shearing Co., Ltd. ¥120 50.0
Gigaphoton, Inc. ¥2,000 50.0
Komatsu Soft Ltd. ¥1,234 35.0
Komatsu Shantui Construction

Machinery Co., Ltd. (KSC) Us$21  (10.0) 40.0
L&T-Komatsu Limited (LTK) Rupee1,200  (50.0) 50.0
Cummins Komatsu Engine

Company (CKEC) — (50.0) 500

Notes:

1.

10.

In addition to the above list, there are 45 consolidated subsidiaries.

. Similarly, there are 16 additional affiliated companies accounted

for by the equity method.

. Participation represents the percentage of voting stock concern-

ing consolidated subsidiaries. The figures contained in parenth-
ses represent the percentage of indirect ownership by other
Komatsu Group companies and are included in the overall
participation percentage.

. Komatsu America International Company is a general partner-

ship in compliance with the regulations of the U.S. state of
Delaware. Our cumulative investment in Komatsu America
International Company totals US$23 million through our sub-
sidiaries Komatsu America Corp. and U.S. Komatsu Inc.

. Advanced Silicon Materials LLC is a limited liability company in

compliance with the regulations of the U.S. state of Delaware.
Our cumulative investment in Advanced Silicon Materials LLC
totals US$215 million through our subsidiary Komatsu America
Corp.

. Komatsu America Industries LLC is a limited liability company

in compliance with the regulations of the U.S. state of Delaware.
Our cumulative investment in Komatsu America Industries LLC
totals US$77 million through our subsidiary Komatsu America
Corp.

. Cummins Komatsu Engine Company is a general partnership

in compliance with the regulations of the U.S. state of Indiana.
Our cumulative investment in Cummins Komatsu Engine
Company totals US$2 million through our subsidiary Komatsu
America Corp.

. Komatsu Hiroshima Ltd., Komatsu Okayama Ltd., and Komatsu

Yamaguchi Ltd. were merged and renamed Komatsu Chugoku
Ltd. in April 2002.

. Komatsu America International Company, Komatsu Mining

Systems, Inc., and one other company were merged and
renamed Komatsu America International Company in April 2002.
Komatsu transferred 100% of the outstanding shares of
Komatsu Miyagi Ltd. in April 2002.

11/ Komatsu Jobu Ltd. was renamed Komatsu Saitama Ltd.

in April 2002.

L1 es



Corporate information

(As of March 31, 2002)

Head Office ... 2-3-6 Akasaka, Minato-ku, Tokyo 107-8414, Japan
Corporate Communications Department
Tel: 81-3-5561-2687
Fax: 81-3-3505-9662
E-mail: ir@komatsu.co.jp
Corporate Controlling Department
Tel: 81-3-5561-2809
Fax: 81-3-5561-2875

Date of Establishment.........ccccovcninine. May 13, 1921

Common Stock Outstanding ...........ccceevnee ¥67,870 million (US$510 million)

Shares of Common Stock Issued

and Qutstanding ........ccccviiinine 958,921,701 shares

Number of Shareholders..........c.ccceveeeeieeeennn. 65,105

Stock Listings .oooeevvveeeieee e Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya, Sapporo, Fukuoka, Luxembourg, Frankfurt
Transfer Agent for Common Stock.............. UFJ Trust Bank Limited

4-3, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0005, Japan

Depositanies......cccoevviciiiiiieeee ADRs: Depositary and Registrar, Citibank, N.A., 111 Wall Street, 20th Floor, New York,
NY 10005, U.S.A.
EDRs: Citibank, N.A., P.O. Box 18055, 5 Carmelite Streset, London EC4Y 0PA, U.K.
GBCs: Dresdner Bank AG, Jirgen-Ponto-Platz 1, 60301 Frankfurt am Main, Germany

Stock Price Range in Fiscal 2002 ................ High: ¥705 (April 27, 2001); Low: ¥355 (September 21, 2001)

Number of Employees (Consolidated)......... 30,760

Tokyo Stock Price Range {As of May 31, 2002}
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Komatsu Ltd.

2-3-6 Akasaka, Minato-ku
Tokyo 107-8414, Japan
http://www.komatsu.com/

Corporate Communications
Department

Tel: 81-3-5561-2687

Fax: 81-3-3505-9662

E-mail: ir@komatsu.co.jp

Corporate Controlling Department
Tel: 81-3-5561-2809
Fax: 81-3-5561-2875
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